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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the“Stock Exchange”) take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Innovationpay Group Limited
(the“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of
which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual results of China
Innovationpay Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2013.

During the year under review, the Group’s turnover was
approximately HK$142,896,000, a 33% decrease as
compared to last year HK$212,805,000. It was mainly
due to global economic climate clouded with various
uncertainties. The Group recorded a loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$279,352,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: profit HK$91,362,000).

Of the said loss, HK$228,787,000 was attributable to
impairment of goodwill.

Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial Management Co.
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has obtained the Certificates for Approval
for Payment Business issued by the People’s Bank
of China which cover the business areas of “Online
Payment (National)” and “Issuance and Acceptance of
Prepaid Cards” spanning the regions including Beijing,
Shanghai, Zhejiang, Guangdong and Liaoning Provinces.
Combined with various effort made by all teams members
within the Group, a concrete payment system has been
established on the basis of prepaid cards business,
which incorporates online and offline payment scenarios
with various payment methods including magnetic
stripe cards, QR code. The Company will continue to
optimize and improve this payment system so as to
offer merchants with comprehensive, online and offline
payment services, marketing services and customer
management services on the one hand and, on the other
hand, provide individual consumers with fast, convenient
and favourable online and offline payment services.

The management believes that, with rapid development
of the third party payment industry in the PRC, the Group
will be able to strengthen its competitiveness in the
industry by unremitted innovations and efforts, striving to
create more fruitful value to the shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

On behalf of the board, | would like to acknowledge ZAAZUAREEERHAEEHETI—H
the commitment of our staff, past and present, and LARIFH @ URAEEEBBHERRRE
the continued support of our business partners and HETE 2R HTEF o KRARFEE KD
shareholders. | would also like to express my personal FE{EHESERNESLEHALAZ
appreciation to my fellow board members for their HERHE -

continuous valuable contributions.

Mr. Guan Guisen FE
Chairman BERLE
Hong Kong, 28 March 2014 B8 —FE-NF=A=1+N\H

HEAFT S NEERRAT ¢ —B—=FFH 5




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRS il

OVERVIEW

The Group consists of the Company, Country Praise
Enterprises Limited (“CPE”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “CPE Group”). The Company is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in four segments. Namely (i) General
trading: trading of electronic products, network hardware
equipment, financial equipment and communication
products; (ii) Prepaid card business: the operations of
prepaid card business, including the issuance of various
prepaid cards, part of which have multiple functions, in
the PRC and recently in Hong Kong and sale of mobile
recharge cards; (iii) Travellers related services: provision
of air-ticketing services and related customers services;
and (iv) Others.

The trading segment continues to contribute the largest
proportion of revenue to the Group. The Group will also
continue to retain basic capital input for this segment. The
prepaid card business segment, as the main business
of the Group, gains most attentions and investments. It
has its main product named “5 & & *f§ €44 cards which
focus on provision of convenient, quick and favorable
payment services for individual consumers, and provision
of payment, customers management and marketing
services for merchants. During the year, based on the
expansion of the volume of the contracted merchants,
the Group also distributed more POS machine to the
contracted merchants, optimizing the acceptance
environment of “SE @M L4{+” cards. Such products
will gain more invested resources to keep rapid growth in
a new year.

The online air-ticket and hotel booking services of the
travellers related services section have been making
good progress. The Group will strive to integrate the
various business sectors in the process of development,
expecting to generate the integrated effect and bring the
Group more benefits.

During the year, due to the tightened expenditure policy
spread over the PRC, both the trading segment and pre-
paid card business segment were affected. As a result a
moderate amount of impairment on goodwill was made.

The effect of the PRC Tax Reform (i.e. replacing “Business
Tax” with “Value Added Tax”) which became effective
was minimal and not continuous. During 2013, an
additional amount of some RMB2.6 million was provided
for this change. The Company foresees that there will be
no further effect from 2014 onwards.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SR EC S il

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s
turnover was approximately HK$142,896,000, a 33%
decrease as compared to last year HK$212,805,000. The
Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$279,352,000
(2012: profit HK$91,362,000). The gross profit margin
of the Group recorded 35% (2012: 38%). Of the said
loss, HK$228,787,000 (2012: HK$160,499,000) was
attributable to impairment of goodwill.

SALES AND MARKETING

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2013,
the Group adopted more-client-oriented promotional
strategies to promote the products, resulting a 272%
increase in sales and marketing expenses over the same
period last year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did
not have any significant investment.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$109,639,000 (2012:
HK$143,425,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has no bank
borrowings.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has no material
capital commitments or substantial pledges on its assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has no material
contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2013, the total current assets
over the total current liabilities was 2.57 times (2012:
2.26 times). The ratio of all debts to total assets was
0 (2012: 0). As most sales are made in Renminbi, no
hedging arrangement is made to offset the exposures to
fluctuations in exchange rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRS il

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group’s operations are mainly located in the
PRC and its transactions, monetary assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in Renminbi, there is minimal
exposure to foreign currency risks. The Group monitors
its foreign currency risks and will consider hedging
significant currency exposures should the need arises.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 12 trademarks
registered in China and Hong Kong, of which all
trademarks have been approved.

At the same time, the Group had 50 software copyrights
in China.

MAJOR EVENTS

On 28 June 2012 Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial
Management, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company obtained the Certificate for Approval
for Payment Business from PBOC pursuant to the
Administrative Measures of Payment Services for Non-
Financial Institutions (& @EE X SIRESEIE)

and the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the
Administrative Measures of Payment Services for Non-
Zine]gcial Institutions (FEE RIS IREERILEEE
II\HEI -

In July 2013, the PBOC further approved to Beijing
Gaohuitong Commercial Management to operate the
business of “Online Payment (National)” and “Issuance and
Acceptance of Prepaid Cards”, covering Beijing, Shanghai,
Zhejiang, Guangdong and Liaoning Provinces.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has approximately
257 employees (2012: 251). Employees are remunerated
according to their performance and work experience.
In addition to basic salaries and retirement scheme,
staff benefits include performance bonus and employee
share options. The Directors believe that good quality of
its employees is a company asset which affects growth
and improves profitability. The Group recognizes the
importance of staff training and thus regularly provides
internal and external training for its staff to enhance their
skills and knowledge.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SR EC S il

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has no material
outstanding litigation.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The Company completed the acquisition of CPE and its
subsidiaries on 28 February 2011. Beijing Gaohuitong
Commercial Management Co. Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained the
Certificates for Approval for Payment Business issued
by the People’s Bank of China on 28 June 2012 and
was further approved to add new geographical areas for
the business of online payment and the issuance and
acceptance of prepaid cards in July 2013. A payment
system has been established by the Company on the
basis of prepaid cards business, which incorporates
online and offline payment scenarios with various
payment methods including magnetic stripe cards, QR
code.

Under the macro environment that the online financial
and payment industry is undergoing robust development,
the Company strives to deliver more comprehensive
online and offline payment services, marketing services
and customer management services to the merchants
based on the prepaid card business and with unremitted
innovations. The Company will focus on the promotion of
“SE Bt LL{+£", which provides consumers with fast,
convenient and favourable online and offline payment
services. Meanwhile, payment services, customer
management services, internet and mobile phone-based
marketing services will be delivered to the merchants
through the integrated POS terminals deployed by the
merchants.

Building on its effort to promote “SEE e g4+ =", the
Company will continue to create new derivative products
in order to offer more professional, diversified marketing
and payment services. The Company will also optimize
its overall payment system to provide more convenient
and favourable payment services to the customers. The
rapid development of the industry and the continuous
business expansion and consolidation of the Company
will bring positive catalyst to the future development and
profitability of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRS il

EVENT AFTER YEAR END DATE

After the trading hours of the Stock Exchange on 12
February 2014, the Company and the Placing Agent
entered into the Placing Agreement that the Company
has conditionally agreed to place through the Placing
Agent, on a best endeavours basis, up to 200,000,000
Placing Shares, to not less than six Placees who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are Independent Third
Parties at a price of HK$0.64 per Placing Share. The
completion of the Placing took place on 20 February
2014 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERRE

Pursuant to the Rule 18.44 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”), the Board
is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 December 2013. This report highlights
the key corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to protect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. The Company’s corporate
governance practices are based on principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(“Code”) in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in securities of the Company. Upon the
Company'’s specific enquiry, each director had confirmed
that during the year ended 31 December 2013, they had
fully complied with the required standard of dealings and
there was no event of non-compliance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and
control of the Company. Its main roles are to provide
leadership and to approve strategic policies and plans
with a view to enhancing shareholder value. All directors
carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
laws and regulations are followed. Any director may
request independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
reasonable request to the Board.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. Details of biographical details of directors and
senior management are set out on page 22 to 27 of this
annual report.

The Board complies with the minimum requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors and one
of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
required under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.

12 China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERRE

Board Meetings

The Board has adopted good corporate governance
practices and procedures, formal notice of at least 14
days will be given in respect of a regular meeting. For
special board meeting, reasonable notice will be given.
Directors participated, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication in the Board
meetings. The Board meets regularly at least four times
every year. The directors participated in person or
through electronic means of communication. All notices
of board meetings were given to all directors, who were
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for discussion. The finalised agenda and accompanying
board papers were sent to all directors at least 3 days
prior to the meeting.

During regular meetings of the Board, the directors
discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation
and financial performance of the Group. The Board
has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim
results, approval of major capital transactions and other
significant operational and financial matters.

All directors are kept informed on a timely basis of
major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses,
including relevant rules and regulations. Directors can
also seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. The
Company Secretary records the proceedings of each
board meeting in detail by keeping detailed minutes,
including all decisions by the Board together with
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any).
All minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on request by any director.
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RERRE

The Board held four board meetings in 2013. Attendance
of the directors were as follows:

Name of Directors
EENA

EEEN T -=FHETORER -2
EBESHFESRCHENT ¢

Attendance
HERE

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Guan Guisen
BERLE

Dr. Lei Chunxiong

E i

Mr. Cao Chunmeng
EHREE

Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHITES

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

FEEELT

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

FTRAR%EE

Mr. Gu Jiawang

AEHEE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and not performed by the same individual to
avoid power being concentrated in any one individual.
The Chairman of the Company is primarily responsible
for the leadership and effective running of the Board,
and ensuring that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive
manner, whereas the Chief Executive Officer is primarily
responsible for the running of the Group’s business and
implementation of the Group’s strategies in achieving the
overall commercial objectives.

The Chairman also encourages all directors, including
the independent non-executive directors, to actively
participate in all board and committee meetings.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of the Company are engaged on a service
contract of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years.
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RERRE

Besides, the procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of directors are laid down in
the Company’s Bye-laws. According to Bye-laws, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and are
eligible for re-election at annual general meetings of the
Company. Any new director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself for re-election
by shareholders at the first general meeting and any
new director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election
by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Bye-laws, Mr. Guan Guisen and
Dr. Lei Chunxiong shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The Board
recommends their re-appointment. The Company’s
circular, sent together with this annual report, contains
detail information of the above two directors as required
by the GEM Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and considers that all the independent
nonexecutive directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Training

All directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as
a director, and of the conduct and business activities of
the Company. The Company is responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training for its directors. Accordingly,
the Company has put in place a training and development
programme for the directors including: an on-going
training and professional development programme for
directors.

All the directors of the Company were provided
with monthly commentary on the Group’s business,
operations, and financial matters. The Company had
also organised a seminar on the topic of “Corporate
Governance Code And Corporate Governance Report”
under the Listing Rules for the directors. All the executive
Directors of the Company namely Mr. Guan Guisen, Dr.
Lei Chunxiong and Mr. Cao Chunmeng; independent
non-executive Directors of the Company namely Dr.
Fong Chi Wah, Mr. Wang Zhongmin and Mr. Gu Jiawang
participated in the said seminar. In addition, individual
Directors also participated in other courses relating to the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director
or further enhancement of their professional development
by way of online aids or reading relevant materials.

All executive and independent non-executive Directors
had provided the Company Secretary with their training
records for the year under review.

Directors’ Code of Ethics

The directors observe a code of ethics (the “Code of
Ethics”) which is formulated and adopted to enhance
the standard of corporate governance and corporate
behaviour. The principles on which the Code of Ethics
relies are those that concern transparency, integrity,
accountability and corporate social responsibility taking
into account the relevant provisions and requirements by
the governing authorities.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company did not have material transactions which
fell under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” which required
disclosure under the GEM Listing Rule Chapter 20.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30
June 2005. The Remuneration Committee is with the
responsibility of approving the remuneration policy for
all Directors and senior executives. The Remuneration
Committee members include a majority of independent
non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen
Dr. Lei Chunxiong

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin — Chairman of Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Gu Jiawang

All Remuneration Committee members met at the end
of the year for the determination of the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management of
the Group. In addition, the Remuneration Committee
members also meet as and when required to consider
remuneration related matters. The works carried out by
the Remuneration Committee are set out below:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure of remuneration
of Directors and the senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

(b) to determine the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and the senior management,
including benefits in kind, provident/retirement
benefits and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of independent non-executive Directors;

() toreview and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
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(d) to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive Directors, senior management
in connection with any loss or termination of
their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company; and

(e) to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on
30 June 2005. The Nomination Committee made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of Directors and the senior management personnel
with reference to certain guidelines as endorsed by
the Nomination Committee members. The Nomination
Committee members include all directors as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen
Dr. Lei Chunxiong

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

Mr. Gu Jiawang — Chairman of Nomination Committee

All Nomination Committee members met at the end of the
year.

The works carried out by the Nomination Committee
members are set out below:

(@ toreview the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) and
to make recommendations to the Board after such
review;

(o) to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, having regard to the
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules; and

() to make recommendations to the Board on relevant

matters relating to the appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors who possess the appropriate
business and financial experience and skills to
understand financial statements. The current Committee
is chaired by Dr. Fong Chi Wah, and the other Audit
Committee members are Mr. Wang Zhongmin and
Mr. Gu Jiawang. Under its terms of reference for audit
committee passed under a directors’ resolution dated 30
June 2005, is required, amongst other things, to oversee
the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s preliminary results, interim results and annual
financial statements and to monitor compliance with
statutory and listing requirements, to engage independent
legal or other advisers as it determines is necessary
and to perform any investigations. The Audit Committee
members held four meetings in 2013.

ETEEE
EIEEERE=FBUFIITES K
ZRBABEBR M BB R R UIERE
BHHREK ZESHASEBRIHEE
7o H BT ZEERERTERALER
ARERE - RERAPR/-ZTTHFERN
A=tHZERRRRBB2EHEES
BEHE  FHEESA(HPEE)ER
ESNEZ B 2R - EHAKENLSE
B PHEEREFMH®REK - BEREST
EERLETRE URERBLEREE
BIMEERSEMERMETHAE - FE
EENB-ZFBETIOREER -

Name of Directors Attendance
REHA HE R

Independent non-executive Dr. Fong Chi Wah — Chairman of Audit Committee 4/4

Directors FEEFT -FHZEEETE

BYEHITES Mr. Wang Zhongmin 4/4
FTRRESE
Mr. Gu Jiawang 4/4
AREEE

Financial Statements MR

The Audit Committee held meetings to discuss the B ZESRTERBNEETEXESE

Group’s quarterly results, interim results, preliminary
results announcement and Annual Report. The Audit
Committee reviews and discusses the management’s
reports and representations with a view to ensuring
that the Group’s consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and other
legal requirements.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 and has provided advice and comments thereon.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and retention of the
external auditors.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Group engaged RSM Nelson Wheeler to provide
services in connection with the audit of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and other professional
services.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s auditors, RSM Nelson
Wheeler, is set out as follows:

SNEEAZ SHED
AEBERERIREE(FB) S BB
MELGEE P BRRREMEERBRM
AR5

2 T e
EREFR - BN BARDAZHA R
EE(FB)STTMBHENMEMT

Fees paid/payable

RN RSE

HK$’000

Services rendered 21t EAER BET T
Audit services R 1,080.0
Non-audit services* FEAZ AR A%~ 11.5
Total: HEEE 1,091.5

*

The non-audit service fees paid/payable to the external auditors
were for advice on taxation matters and for preparation, review
and submission of tax returns.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries, in
accordance with accounting principle generally accepted
in Hong Kong. The Directors’ responsibilities in the
preparation of the financial statements and the auditors’
responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report in this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

An internal control system, being an integral part of the
Company’s operations, is a process effected by the
Board and management team to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations in achieving the established corporate
objectives, safeguarding Company assets, providing
reliable financial reporting, and complying with applicable
laws and regulations.

The Board is responsible for making appropriate
assertions on the adequacy of internal controls over
financial reporting and the effectiveness of disclosure
controls and procedures. Through the Audit Committee,
it regularly reviews the effectiveness of the system.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company assists the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The
company secretary is also responsible for advising the
Board on governance matters. As an employee of the
Company, Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, the company secretary
of the Company, has undertaken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update his skills and
knowledge in 2013.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information about the Company’s performance to
shareholders through the publication of quarterly reports
and annual report. In addition to dispatching circulars,
notices and financial reports to shareholders, additional
information is also available to shareholders on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, which
is updated regularly. The annual general meeting provides
a useful forum for shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend annual general meetings for
which the Company gives at least 21 days’ notice. The
Chairman, Directors and external auditors are available
to answer questions on the Company’s businesses
at the meeting. The Company values feedback from
shareholders on its effort to promote transparencies and
foster investor relationships.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE ZBEFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guan Guisen, aged 50, joined the Company on 28
February 2011. Mr. Guan acts as an executive Director,
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Guan obtained his
bachelor degree from China Central University of Finance
and Economics (FRE&KE) in 1984 and a master
degree from Graduate School of the People’s Bank of
China (FE ARIEITHFZELEEE) in 1987. Mr. Guan has
over twenty years of senior management experience
in finance, property development and investment in
the PRC. Mr. Guan was a deputy president of Hainan
Technology and Industry Group (BFE& T&EE) from
1990 to 1994, a deputy president of Taihe Holdings
Co., Ltd. (KRE#EREBR/AF]) from 2001 to 2003 and a
director of China Union Pay Data Services Co., Ltd. (&
BtEE AR /A 8)) from 2002 to 2005. From August 2008,
Mr. Guan became the chairman of Beijing Dongsen Jinbi
Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (It REHEHZEBIREZ
#HABR A7) and a director of China Union Loyalty Co.,
Ltd. (E/SREE AR A F). From April 2010 to March
2011, Mr. Guan became the chairman of Beijing Shangyin
Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (BiEEiE (dt3R) 1RE
ZAAR A ). Mr. Guan owns the entire equity interest
in Beijing Dongsen Jinbi Investment Consultancy Co.,
Ltd. (ARERHREEREZHABRAF), an investment
company, which in turns owned 10.18% equity interest in
China Union Loyalty Co., Ltd. (E38$REE AR A 7).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE ZBEFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Dr. Lei Chunxiong, aged 48, joined the Company on
28 February 2011. Dr. Lei acts as an executive Director
of the Company. He graduated from Hunan Chenzhou
Normal Institute (#iE@#E/NETE) in 1983 and obtained a
master degree from Tianjin Normal University (X 2EM &8 K
E) in 1991 and a doctoral degree from Graduate School
of People’s Bank of China (FE A RIRITHIZEAEE) in
1996. Dr. Lei has over 20 years of experience in banking
and electronic payment sectors. He worked as a deputy
section head, section head and deputy department head
of Bank of China, Hunan branch from 1991 to 1997. From
February 1997 to July 2001, Dr. Lei worked for the head
office of China Merchants Bank as an assistant general
manager of treasury planning department, research
department and an deputy general manager of individual
banking department. He joined China Unionpay Co.,
Ltd. (P EISREEAR DB R A F]) in August 2001 until March
2010 initially as its general manager of the strategic
development department and later as its assistant
president. In between his tenure with China Unionpay
Co., Ltd. (T EERER M BR A7), Dr. Lei was also an
executive director of Unionpay Merchant Services Co.,
Ltd. GREARSFS PR F), a director of China Unionpay
Data Services Co., Ltd. ($REEEIEHER A 7)), China Pay
Co., Ltd. (E'BREEFX{JEMR 2 7), China Union
Loyalty Co., Ltd. (L/8REEMAER A F]), Guangzhou
Unionpay Network Payment Co., Ltd. (BNSRBF A 4% = 1+
BPBR/A 7)) as well as a director and president of Shanghai
Kayou Information Services Co., Ltd. (-8R EHREHE
BR A |]). In March 2011, Dr. Lei is the chairman of Beijing
Gaohuitong Commercial Management Co. Ltd (1t R SE
BAEXEEAMRATF). He is also a committee member of
Shanghai Financial Arbitration Advising Committee (L&
TRMEREAEZES).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE ZBEFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, aged 42, joined the Company in
March 2011 and acted as Vice President of the Company.
Mr. Cao was appointed as executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 11 July 2012. Mr.
Cao held a bachelor’s degree in Computer Science
from Shandong University in 1994. And he obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from Peking
University in 2006. He worked at Shandong Branch of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, acted
as General Manager in EEELEREERAT (Jlnan
Xiande Technology Limited), Senior Deputy President in
x5 (RE) BRAF ( Fengéuanxm Chlna) lelted)
General Manager in #i4& (k) ERBEMERA
7] (Zongheng Tiandi (Beijing) Information Technology
Limited) and as Vice President in 4t 5% (dt=
EFEHBIR /AT (Beikong Easycode (Beijing) Electric
Commerce Ltd). And from April of 2010, Mr. Cao acts
as Vice President of Beijing Shang_xln Investment
Consultancy Co., Limited (F#R@t#E (E3R) REZHBER
‘A &]). From July 2012 Mr. Cao acts as executive director
of Kopu (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. (E:EER (db=)
RHHEZAEBRAE]). Mr. Cao has over 17 years of financial
information technology Internet industry management
experience.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 51, joined the Group in
December 19, 2003. Dr. Fong is a Chartered Financial
Analyst, a member of Hong Kong Institute of CPAs and
the Institute of Certified Management Accountants,
Australia, and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Dr.
Fong has over 23 years of experience in various sectors
of the financial industry, including direct investment,
project and structured finance and capital markets, with
a focus on the PRC and Hong Kong. Dr. Fong was a
director of Baring Capital (China) Management Limited
and held various management positions in ING Bank.
He was appointed as an executive director of National
Investments Fund Limited on November 1, 2005 and an
independent non-executive director of Real Nutriceutical
Group Limited on March 28, 2008, and both companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is appointed as a
court member of Lingnan University for the period from
January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2016. Dr. Fong obtained
a bachelor’s degree in management science (economics)
from Lancaster University, United Kingdom, in 1984, a
master’s degree in business administration from Warwick
University, United Kingdom, in 1986, a master’s degree in
investment management from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology in 1999, a master’s degree in
practising accounting from Monash University, Australia,
in 2001, a doctorate in business administration from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and a juris
doctor’s degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE ZBEFS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Cont’d)

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, aged 64, has a diploma in
industrial economic management from A B KE &%
B[z (The Correspondence School of Renmin University
of China*). Mr. Wang has over 40 years of experience in
the coal industry. Mr. Wang worked as the deputy section
head of ik TH#IfE17E] (the Finance Department of
the Ministry of Coal Industry ) from 1981 to 1988, the
section head of FEZ L IEAE A BB 753B (the Finance
Department in China National Coal Corporation®) from
1988 to 1993, the section head and the deputy head of /&
RIS [557}7']’%**”“7 (the Finance and Labor Department
of Ministry of Coal Industry*) from 1993 to 1995, the
chairman and the general manager of EFIJi%{.:.on =¥}
FRE{E/2 7] (China Coal Trust Co., Ltd.*) from 1995 to
mmmmCmmMnd¢m%%ﬁm§E®a@mMme
Trust Co., Ltd.*) from 2002 to 2010 and the chairman of
REHESEEHMR /AT (Harvest Fund Management Co.,
Ltd.*) from 2003 to 2011. He was the first chairman of &
Bl{=sE¥1 = (China Trustee Association*). He was also
appointed as the independent director of L AHEER
R BFR /A3 (Shanghai Datun Energy Resources Co.,
Limited*) (stock code: 600508) and deputy chairman of &1
B4 ik T2 < (China National Coal Association*). Mr.
Wang joined the Company in April 2011.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, aged 63, has accumulated profound
knowledge and valuable experience in the mass media
industry. Mr. Gu worked as a senior editor, commentator,
person in charge of the editing section and the head
of the business development department of AK HR
(People’s Daily*). He was also appointed as the chief
executive officer of FEIZEBREZEBRER 23 (China
Huawen Investment Holding Company Limited*) which
is held by AR B#R (People’s Daily*), the chairman of A
FETEREBRE(EL T (Zhongtai Trust and Investment
Co., Ltd.*), the chairman of LiE@#i&ER (£E) BREE
’z}ﬁ (Shangha| New Huang Pu (Group) Co., Ltd.*) and the
chairman of R & KR BR AR (Shenzhen Stock
Times Newspaper Limited*). Mr. Gu graduated from the
Philosophy Department of Nanjing University. He also
obtained a postgraduate diploma after studying two years
at the Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C.
Mr. Gu joined the Company in April 2011.

*

For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE ZBEFS

HONORABLE CHAIRMAN

Mr. Liu Tinghuan, a famous banker, was appointed as
Honorable Chairman of the Company on 23 October
2011. Mr. Liu was the former chairman of China Unionpay
Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu began his profession in the banking
sector of China from 1960s. Since 1985, Mr. Liu had
served as deputy president, deputy Secretary of the
Party, and then became the president and the Party
Secretary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China. In
2000, Mr. Liu was appointed to the deputy president and
deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of The People’s
Bank of China. Mr. Liu was a committee member of the
Standing Committee of the 10th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
in 2003. He was deputy director of the Economic
Commission, an alternate committee member of the
15th Central Committee of Communist Party of China
and a representative of the 16th National Congress of
Communist Party of China. Mr. Liu served as chairman
of China Unionpay Co., Ltd from 2004 to 2010. Mr. Liu
served as independent non-executive director of Bank
of Communications since August 2013. Mr. Liu achieved
extraordinary contribution to the development of China
Unionpay and China’s payment industry.

CHIEF ECONOMIC CONSULTANT

Mr. Xia Bin, a famous economist and financial expert in
China, was acted as the Chief Economic Consultant of
the Company on 8 June 2011. Mr. Xia Bin currently serves
as an honorable director of Research Institute of Finance
under Development Research Centre of the State Council,
and Chief Consultant of China International Futures
Co., Ltd. He also acts as an independent director of
China Fortune Land Co., Limited and Haitong Securities
Co., Limited. Mr. Xia was ever a director of Research
Institute of Finance under Development Research Centre
of the State Council, a number of the Monetary Policy
Committee of the People’s Bank of China, served as a
vice director of the Institute of Finance of the People’s
Bank of China, a manager of trading department of the
CSRC, a general manager of Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
a person-in-charge of Department of Policy Research of
the People’s Bank of China and a director of Regulatory
of Non-Banking Financial Organization of the People’s
Bank of China. Mr. Xia Bin’s research primarily covers
macro-economic condition; currency policy; financial
regulatory and the development of the capital market in
China. Mr. Xia wrote or edited a lot of books which are
very influential to the capital markets.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE ZBEFS

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xue Wei, aged 51, joined the Company on 2 May
2012 and acted as Vice President of the Company and
President of Kopu (Beijing) Technology Co. Ltd. (5£5&
B2 (=) R ARAT]). After graduated from the
Foreign Language School of the China International
Politic Institute (BB BUEEEFR) with major in French
in 1985, he was awarded master degree in business
administration by the China Economic Research Centre
of the Peking University and the FORHDAM University
in the United States. Mr. Xue had worked as manager of
China Air Service Ltd, standing vice general manager of
Kingyou Air Transportation Service Co. (& R 22 E i iR 1%
A T]), general manager of bt U IAE B PR E# A 7, general
manager of Beijing Bao Sheng Air Service Company,
general manager of & /1 ik Bl R i 75 i 1T & 32 /A |, general
manager of air ticketing department of Mangocity (www.
mangocity.com) and vice president of eLong (www.elong.
com). He has 26 years of extensive experience in the
air freight and travel agency industry in China, involving
the research and management of business travel and
e-commerce. Mr. Xue is currently a standing member of
the agency committee under the China Air Transportation
Association (FEIMEZE@BIHENREAZES), and a
member of the professional team under the GLG Councils
of the United States.

Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, aged 48, is the qualified
accountant and company secretary of the Company. Mr.
Fung holds an Honours Degree in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

The Directors present their report together with the
audited financial statements of China Innovationpay
Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018.

THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 17 August
1999 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). Its
shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM?”)
since 14 April 2000.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in four segments.
Namely (i) General trading: trading of electronic products,
network hardware equipment, financial equipment and
communication products; (ii) Prepaid card business:
the operations of prepaid card business, including the
issuance of various prepaid cards, part of which have
multiple functions, in the PRC and recently in Hong Kong
and distribution of prepaid phone cards; (iii) Travellers
related services: provision of air-ticketing services and
related customers services; and (iv) Others.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, segment result and
segment assets for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in Note 7 and 9 respectively to the accompanying
financial statements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 47% of the
Group’s total turnover, while the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for approximately 41% of the
Group’s total purchases. The largest customer accounted
for approximately 20% of the Group’s total turnover while
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 20% of
the Group’s total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out on page 42 to 45 of this
annual report.

DIVIDEND
The Directors did not recommend the payment of any
dividend (2012: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 33 to the accompanying financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that
is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the directors confirm that
the Company maintained a sufficient of public float as
required under the GEM Listing rules.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 December 2013, there were outstanding zero
coupon convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 convertible to 375,000,000 ordinary
shares of par value HK$0.01 each.

WARRANTS

On 16 July 2012 (after trading hours), the Company and
Senrigan Master Fund (the“Subscriber”) entered into the
Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to issue and the Subscriber agreed to subscribe
for the Warrants, at the Issue Price of HK$0.002 per
Warrant. The Warrants entitle the Subscriber to subscribe
for 300,000,000 Warrant Shares with an aggregate face
value of HK$120 million at the initial Subscription Price of
HK$0.40 per Warrant Share for a period of five (5) years
commencing from the date of issue of the Warrants.

On 27 July 2012, all conditions set out in the Subscription
Agreement had been fulfilled and completed. No listing
of the Warrants will be sought on the GEM or any other
stock exchanges.

As at this report date, no Warrants had been exercised

RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 34 to the accompanying financial
statements.

Movements in retained profits and other reserves of the
Group during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 47 of this annual
report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

As at 31 December 2013 the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to its shareholders. However,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
approximately HK$640,060,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Byelaws and the laws in Bermuda in relation
to the issue of new shares by the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
are set out in Notes 19 and 22 respectively to the
accompanying financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Details of the Group’s share option schemes are set out
in Note 35 to the accompanying financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in Note 40
to the accompanying financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guan Guisen (Chairman)

Dr. Lei Chunxiong

Mr. Cao Chunmeng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

Mr. Gu Jiawang

In accordance with items 99 and 102A of the Bye-Laws
of the Company, Mr. Guan Guisen and Dr. Lei Chunxiong
will retire from office by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guan Guisen, the executive director, has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 February 2014.

Dr. Lei Chunxiong, the executive director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 28 February 2014.

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, the executive director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 11 July 2012.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, the independent non-executive
directors, has entered the service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 19
December 2012.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah has served on the Board for more
than 9 years but he has never held any executive or
management position in the Group nor has he throughout
such period been under the employment of any member
of the Group. Dr. Fong has demonstrated his ability to
provide an independent view to the Company’s matters.
The Directors noted the positive contributions Dr. Fong
made to the development of the Company. Dr. Fong Chi
Wah has given the confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules to the
Company. The nomination committee of the Company
has assessed and is satisfied of the independence of
Dr. Fong. The Board considers that the long services of
Dr. Fong would not affect his exercises of independent
judgments, notwithstanding his years of service as an
independent Non-executive Director of the Company, the
Board is of the view that Dr. Fong is able to continue to
fulfill his roles as required.

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, the independent non-executive
director, has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 28
April 2011.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, the independent non-executive director,
has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 28 April 2011.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being
proposed for reelection at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Company to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions
of the Directors in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (i) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

EENEOER
REETESRNFREMER A28 -
H 2 I N R s E AR B B 2 RIS [E) 3 B /BB
NABERTEMEARDTNEBEREM
%f(}j‘%ﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬂﬂ%)%ﬁiﬁ%éﬂ@i
Ere s

EENROESR
RZBE—=F+=ZA=+—8 '  EERK
AEREFMEH LB (EERFHR B
ERBIEXVER) 2R - HHER D R EE
E o BEA()RBEZESFRBERGIEXVE
FIRSDEAHMEARDN TR Tz S
AR (EBREBEEFRBEFMBEK
XEIESEBBFTEZEEZRAR) =
(IVRIBEEH R PEKRAIE352FREERT
ANRZIRFTi B e M 2 SR A 5 (iii)iR
BRIZEMR EHRAIES46E5676EHE
BETESRGZ2RAEEANEAR QAR
TR ERBAAIT -

Long position in Shares R 2iFE
Interest in
Interest in underlying Total interest %
Name of Directors shares shares in shares Shareholding
RIEE R 5 RRG
EEER RIRG 2 s e 2B REm REBDL
Mr. Guan Guisen (Note 1) 1,158,950,000 375,000,000 1,533,950,000 32.59%
BEREE (M)
Dr. Lei Chunxiong 47,180,000 - 47,180,000 1%
BAEE LT
Mr. Cao Chunmeng 47,620,000 19,800,000 67,420,000 1.43%
BEHEHLE (Note 2)
(Brzt2)
Dr. Fong Chi Wah - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
FEEELT (Note 2)
(Brzt2)
Mr. Wang Zhongmin - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
FTRREE (Note 2)
(Krzt2)
Mr. Gu Jiawang - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
AEREE (Note 2)
(Krzt2)
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Note 1: These shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises
Limited (“Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially
owned by Mr. Guan Guisen. Mighty Advantage is deemed to
be interest in 375,000,000 shares through its interest in the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$120,000,000.
Adding the 1,158,950,000 shares held by Mighty Advantage,
Mighty Advantage is deemed to be interested in 1,533,950,000
shares of the Company. As at the date of this report,
1,158,950,000 shares held by Mighty Advantage are 23.38%
of the issued share capital of the Company.

Note 2: The Company granted the share options under New Share
Option Scheme on 6 July 2012.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable
Date, none of the Directors of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), which (i) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into
the register referred to therein; or (iii) were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to securities transactions by Directors to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2013,
there was no other person (other than a director or chief
executive officer of the Company) who had any interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

R F R AE RGBT HREN
BERETERR

BRTXAREEN  R-E—=F+_F
=t—H8 > BARFAREBE(EZRHER
PI)EE336IREIF AV E M ATRC i - HIEH
AL (ARRESHEBRITHAERM)
RARBN R RABBERAD hEREAE

32 77 K O
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Long position in Shares RBRGBZHR

Interest in

Interest in underlying Total interest %

Name of Directors shares shares in shares Shareholding

KBRS i av)
EE=E8B R 2 s 2 RS RET DL
Mr. Guan Guisen (Note) 1,158,950,000 375,000,000 1,533,950,000 32.59%
BERSTE (HEE)
Note: These shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises A :  #ZZR {3 EMighty Advantage Enterprises

Limited (“Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially
owned by Mr. Guan Guisen. Mighty Advantage is deemed to
be interest in 375,000,000 shares through its interest in the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$120,000,000.
Adding the 1,158,950,000 shares held by Mighty Advantage,
Mighty Advantage is deemed to be interested in 1,533,950,000
shares of the Company. As at the date of this report,
1,158,950,000 shares held by Mighty Advantage are 23.38%
of the issued share capital of the Company.
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EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

New Share Option Scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted at the annual general meeting held 3 May 2012
and is valid for 5 years. After which period no further
options will be granted but the provisions of this scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects.

Share Option Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants hereunder for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest.

Pursuant to Share Option Scheme, the Company may
grant options to the participants of Share Option Scheme
to subscribe for ordinary shares of $0.01 each, subject to,
when aggregated under this scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time to time. The
subscription price will be determined by the Company’s
Board of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the nominal value of the ordinary shares, (ii) the average
of the closing price of the ordinary shares quoted on the
GEM on the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, and (iii) the closing price of ordinary shares
quoted on the GEM on the date of grant, which must be
a business day. An offer of an option shall be deemed to
have been granted and accepted when a duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
participant, together with a remittance of HK$1 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the
Company within a period of 28 days from the date of
offer.

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite any
person who has contributed to, or can contribute to the
Group’s business value and/or technology from product
development, sales and marketing, manufacturing to
enhancing efficiency of operation to take up options to
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company.
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No participant shall be granted an option which would fHZEERBETEECEREETFERN
result in the total number of shares issued and to be FIEERE(EEETHE  EFHEREE
issued upon exercise of all the options granted and to be {THERERE) M BT R AT FEITHR
granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled W& E  r BRHEZEEREZ B (BER
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up HZH)EFEM12@L BHEESHLERE
to and including the date of such grant representing in  B{TIRMEZE 1% > AR EEZBEALE
aggregate over 1 per cent. of the total number of shares HEERHE -

in issue.

Details of the options under New Share Option Scheme REBZ-—F—=F+-A=+—HLEFE
during the year ended 31 December 2013 were as RIEHEE R 2R H AV B R EFE B

follows: mr
At Granted  Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2013 the year the year the year 2013
R=8-ZF ERiS/ R=%-ZF
it B s 3| -f-H ERRH XN ERfiE TZA=1-H
New Share Option Scheme
i U B |
Directors and Chief Executives
ESRRATHAR
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - - 6,840,000
“E-ZELARA “R-ZELARRE 02587
“E-t5tRIA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - - 6,840,000
“Z-MEtBRAE 0.2587
“E-t5tREA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - - 9,120,000
“E-1EtARRE 0.25%T
“E-t5tREA
Other employees
HtifEg
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 54,477,000 - (2,253,000) - 52,224,000
“E-CEtARA “Z-ZEtBrHE 0.2587
“E-tELATA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 54,477,000 - (3,036,000) - 51,441,000
“Z-MELRRAE 0.2587
“E-tELATA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 72,636,000 - (4,048,000) - 68,588,000
“Z-1%tBirHE 0.2587
“E-tELATA
Total share options
BREAY 204,390,000 - (9,337,000 - 195,053,000
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Details of the options under New Share Option Scheme as A% A HREFHBRETERENE

at the report date were as follows: REFBERMAT ¢
At Granted  Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during report
Date of grant Exercise period price 2014 the year the year the year date
K-2-mE Ehig/
it B s %R -f-H ERRH XM ERfiE  WARERD
New Share Option Scheme
i O HE
Directors and Chief Executives
ESRRATHAR
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - - 6,840,000
Z2-ZELARA “E-ZELARRE 02587
“2-tEtAEA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - - 6,840,000
“Z-MELBRAE 0.2587
“2-tEtAEA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - - 9,120,000
“E-REtARRE 0257
“2-tEtAEA
Other employees
HtifEg
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 52,224,000 - - (49,522,000) 2,702,000
“E-CEtARA “E-ZELARAE 0.2587
“E-tELATA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 51,441,000 - - - 51,441,000
“E-MELARAE 0.25% T
“E-tELATA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 68,588,000 - - - 68,588,000
“E-nFtARAE 0.2587
“E-tELATA
Total share options
ERELY 195,053,000 - - (495220000 145,531,000
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with the standards of good practice concerning
the general management responsibilities of the Board of
Directors as set out in Chapter 5 of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout year ended 31 December 2013.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group is set out on pages 135
and 136 of this annual report.

AUDITORS
On 30 December 2010, RSM Nelson Wheeler (“RSM”)
was appointed.

RSM will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint RSM as
the auditor of the Company.

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 have been audited by RSM.

By Order of the Board

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHERES

@ RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA INNOVATIONPAY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Innovationpay Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 42 to 134, which comprise the consolidated
and Company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note
4(d) and note 21 to the consolidated financial statements
relating to the key assumptions that management made
when determining the amount of impairment of goodwill
at end of reporting period.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

g b
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
et FHET FET
Turnover R 7 142,896 212,805
Cost of sales HERA (93,173) (131,374)
Gross profit EF 49,723 81,431
Other income Hiug A 8 3,943 7,031
Selling expenses SHERY (19,911) (5,353)
Administrative expenses THEX (52,025) (45,681)
Other operating expenses Hh &=z 17 - (6,000)
Equity-settled share-based REEE RN SRR
payments (9,173) (6,022)
(Loss)/profit from operations g (B18E) R F (27,443) 25,406
Finance costs BER A 10 (13,187) (12,371)
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 20 (933) -
Impairment of goodwill BERE 21 (228,787) (160,499)
Impairment of investment in an R—EBE L R 2RE
associate A 22 - (822)
Impairment of amount due from an  FEUR— B A B 508
associate A (4,733) -
Gain on fair value change of ENRARERFESZ
contingent consideration payable B 30 - 252,640
Gain on fair value change of R—EBEQT2RE
investment in an associate N EEENEGE 36 1,273 -
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (E51R), BRI (273,810) 104,354
Income tax expense PR8I 11 (4,927) (12,757)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE(ER),EF 12 (278,737) 91,597
Attributable to: PR AL B4 -
Owners of the Company BATEEA 15 (279,352) 91,362
Non-controlling interests IR 615 235
(278,737) 91,597
HK cents HK cents
Bl B
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(ER) EF 16
Basic B-WiN (5.93) 2.07
Diluted e \N/A 2.07
TiE A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SRR EMEEWAR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

2013 2012
—E-=5F —E——_F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FE) EF (278,737) 91,597
Other comprehensive income: Hi2mKA :
Items that may be reclassified to HREEF 7 E R B 2 -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on BRERINEBRCELRER
translating foreign operations 31,795 10,637
Other comprehensive income for FREM2EKA - HIBRHE
the year, net of tax 31,795 10,637
Total comprehensive income for SREEW AL
the year (246,942) 102,234
Attributable to: LU AL B4
Owners of the Company Vi/NCTEZ Y =IN (247,557) 101,999
Non-controlling interests IR 615 235

(246,942) 102,234
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR AR

At 31 December 2013

RZZE—=F+=-RA=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=5F —E—-—-F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MIEE FHET FBT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BERZE 18 6,546 5,660
Long term deposits REZS 25 28,216 27,421
Intangible assets BREE 20 10,210 8,639
Goodwill kS 21 743,092 940,671
Investment in an associate R—REBE AT ZRE 22 - -
Amount due from an associate FEW — g A B FRIE 22 - 4,106
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE 32 1,918 1,866
789,982 988,363
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 1,921 2,109
Trade receivables FEUR BRFX 24 48,570 60,879
Prepayments, deposits and other FEAT ,@’(IE CZE R HME
receivables e 25 37,170 55,205
Bank and cash balances RITRB &R 26 109,639 143,425
Tax recoverable ] Uk [ %4 18 296 1,869
197,596 263,487
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FEASBRFR 27 4,961 10,749
Accruals and other payables FREARHMENTRIEA 28 60,555 95,885
Amounts due to directors EAEEFE 29 9,253 5,000
Current tax liabilities ENEARiEaE 2,228 5,057
76,997 116,691
Net current assets REBEEFE 120,599 146,796
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERREBAME 910,581 1,135,159
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Contingent consideration payable  FE{IZSARE 30 - -
Convertible bonds AR ES 31 86,596 73,409
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEEE 32 - -
86,596 73,409
NET ASSETS BEEFE 823,985 1,061,750
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H
2013 2012
—E—_=£F —E—_—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
izt FET FET
Capital and reserves BXR#E
Share capital [}5%N 33 47,071 47,071
Reserves f#E 34 776,207 1,014,591
Equity attributable to owners of QTR AL ER
the Company 823,278 1,061,662
Non-controlling interests FEEE IR 707 88
TOTAL EQUITY R 823,985 1,061,750

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014 R-ZE—NE=ZA=-+N\BEESSHE

Director Director
EE EE
MR. GUAN GUISEN DR. LEI CHUN XIONG
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B AR TR
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=-RA=+—H
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E-——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MIEE FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - RERERE 172 244
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 19 787,088 1,000,088
787,260 1,000,332
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other JENEIE S REREM
receivables e 786 3,823
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUREf B A BFIE 19 130,267 135,305
Bank and cash balances RITRIRELER 1,616 535
132,669 139,663
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables JEIRE AR EMMENTIE 1,616 1,218
Amounts due to subsidiaries BB A TRIE 19 825 795
Amounts due to directors FE{HESEFIE 29 9,250 5,000
11,691 7,013
Net current assets REEEFE 120,978 132,650
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERATERE 908,238 1,132,982
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Contingent consideration payable FEASRNRE 30 - -
Convertible bonds AR ES 31 86,596 73,409
86,596 73,409
NET ASSETS EERE 821,642 1,059,573
Capital and reserves EXRRH#HE
Share capital AN 33 47,071 47,071
Reserves f#E 34 774,571 1,012,502
TOTAL EQUITY SR 821,642 1,059,573

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014 REZE-MEZA-+N\HKESSHE

Director Director
EE EE
MR. GUAN GUISEN DR. LEI CHUN XIONG
BMERLE EEEL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeEmSBR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ROFREARL
Share Share  Convertible Non-
Share  premium Capital  Statutory  Exchange option bondsequity ~ Warrant  Retained controlling Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

TRREE  AREE
b5 hBERE  ERRR  IRER  ENGRE  BREER  AudR B REE ait AEREE  REHE
HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOO  HKSO00  HKSODD  HKSO0D
T TR TER  TEn  TEn TR TAn  TEr  TEn  TEn TEn T

At1 January 2012 RZE-ZF-B-A 39,646 493,744 2,850) 4240 47,730 3,158 - - 204,717 790,445 (147) 790,298
Total comprehensive income  ERZEUALE

for the year - - - - 10,637 - - - 91,362 101,999 285 102,234
Transfer to statutory reserve  EBEETHE - - - 3882 - - - - (3882) - - -
Release upon lapse of share - AEREX SRR

options - - - - - (379 - - 379 - - -
Share-based payments LUSGEL] - - - - - 6,022 - - - 6,022 - 6,022
Issuance of convertible bonds &7 AR ER - - - - - - 33804 - - 33804 - 33804
Conversion of comvertible T ERES

bonds 7075 140,29 - - - - (22,093 - - 125,278 - 125,278
Exercise of share options ~~ 7F B RfE 30 6,020 - - - 2119 - - - 3591 - 3,591
Issuance of unlisted warrants - /73 L RER

(note 4 R0 - - - - - - - 523 - 53 - 53

At 31 December 2012 WoE-E&

tZB=1-A 47,071 640,060 2,850) 8,122 58,367 6,022 1,711 523 29263 1,061,662 88 1,061,750
At1 January 2013 W-E-=F-B-8 47,07 640,060 2,850) 8,122 58,367 6,022 1,711 523 29263 1,061,662 88 1,061,750
Total comprehensive income  FR2ERALE
forthe year - - - R 0 - - - OmEY) () 65 (4694
Transferto statutory reserve. BB HEEE - - - 5% - - - - (555) - - -
Arsing from acquistion of  WE-EHELT
asubsidiary (note 36(a) FEE (HE36() - - - - - - - - - - 4 4
Share-based payments R fzE - - - - - 91713 - - - 9,173 - 9,173
Release upon lapse of share  FNEREX B ER
options - - - - - (100) - - 100 - - -

At 31 December 2013 R-Z-zZE
t-B=1-8 41,1 640,060 2,850) 8,677 90,162 15,09 11,711 523 12,829 823,278 707 823,985
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERSMEMK

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

2013 2012
—E-=5F —E-——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Hif=E FERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING &E&ZHHELSTE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBLAT (&518), SR F (273,810) 104,354
Adjustments for: PMUT HIEFAE
Interest income FEUA 8 (3,213) (3,889)
Finance costs BhE AR A 10 13,187 12,371
Depreciation e 18 2,656 2,562
Amortisation of intangible assets HBiEmEEE 20 1,460 569
Loss on disposals of property, HEME  BERERE
plant and equipment JSg] 5 198
Property, plant and equipment W - BMERRE
written off 18 82 -
Trade receivables written off i 515 P U BR 2R - 774
Other receivables written off T g B b pE W Fh1E 659 -
Gain on fair value change of R—EBE AR 2 RE
investment in an associate NFESF W (1,273) -
Gain on fair value change of BEAREATE
contingent consideration BN
payable - (252,640)
Equity-settled share-based IR B R T FRIE
payments 9,173 6,022
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 20 933 -
Impairment of goodwill BERIE 21 228,787 160,499
Impairment of investment in an R—EEE QAR Z2RE
associate DAl 22 - 822
Impairment of amount due from FEUr — B & A B FUE
an associate BB 4,733 -
Impairment of trade receivables FE W BR FORE 24 1,080 -
Operating (loss)/profit before working &iE& & & B)f] > &%
capital changes (&518), & F (15,541) 31,642
Decrease in inventories FERD 188 49
Decrease in trade receivables FE U BR SRR 11,235 9,151
Decrease/(increase) in AR - RER
prepayments, deposits and H 1t FE W R IE
other receivables HA (i) 26,864 (18,664)
Decrease in trade payables FEASBR AR (5,808) (7,397)
Decrease in accruals and other TERER R HEMERN
payables B (38,532) (20,331)
Cash used in operations KEFTARS (21,594) (5,550)
Interest received 2 U F & 2,963 3,889
Income tax paid 2IBiE (6,903) (20,065)
Interest paid EMFE - (88)
Net cash used in operating activities && EBFTAR ST (25,534)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BRSTREBBR

HV—F

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

2013 2012
—E-=fF —E-C—fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
izt FHT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ®EZHHLSTE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BAYIE - RENRZE
equipment 18 (3,171) (2,241)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEW% « BE &R HE
plant and equipment 8 shiE 1 —
Additions to intangible assets %ﬂﬁ,ﬁﬁ 20 (3,446) (4,739)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Hﬁzﬁﬁ R A 7 36(a) (2,267) -
(Increase)/decrease in long term RHIRS (1), R
deposits (795) 12,340
Advance to an associate o LN EE - (1,192)
Loans to third-parties HBTYE=ZFER (7,674) (7,482)
Net cash used in investing activities &Z&FZEIFTAREEEE (17,352) (3,314)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ®mEZHHLTE
ACTIVITIES
Issuance of unlisted warrant EXTIE AR AR ERE - 523
Proceeds from exercise of share TEBREMSIE
options - 3,591
New bank loans raised %ﬁiﬁgﬁﬁﬁgfx 4,750
Advance from directors EERX 4,212 5,000
Repayment of bank loans and RITERREMER
other loan B - (4,750)
Net cash generated from financing BIEZEIFFSREFEE
activities 4,212 9,114
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HeRESEEMRD
CASH EQUIVALENTS B (38,674) (16,014)
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExREETEF
changes, net 4,888 1,695
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W—A—BzHZ2R
AT 1 JANUARY REEEY 143,425 157,744
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®W+=—A=+—8B=z2
AT 31 DECEMBER HeRBESEEY 109,639 143,425
ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND HeRESEENIT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances SRITRIRE AR 109,639 143,425
FEEF Y NEBEERAT ¢ —T—=FF§ 49
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

1.  GENERAL INFORMATION 1.—RER

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is Unit
2708, 27/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 19 to the financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2013. HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”);
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation
of the Group’s financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years except
as stated below.

(@) Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of Financial Statements”
Amendments to HKAS 1 titled Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
introduce new optional terminology for
statement of comprehensive income and
income statement that has been applied by
the Group. Under the amendments to HKAS
1, a statement of comprehensive income is
renamed as a statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and an income
statement is renamed as a statement of profit
or loss. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain
the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRAR AL

VeV

2 Ny =|

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of Financial Statements” (Cont’d)

The amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis.

The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation
of items of other comprehensive income has
been modified to reflect the change. Other
than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on
profit or loss, other comprehensive income
and total comprehensive income.

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” supersedes the requirements
relating to consolidated financial statements
in HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” and Hong
Kong (SIC) Interpretation 12 “Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10
introduces a single control model to determine
whether an investee should be consolidated,
by focusing on whether the entity has power
over the investee, exposure to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and the
ability to use its power to affect the amount of
those returns. It requires the consolidation of
an investee if the entity controls the investee
on the basis of de facto circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRIt
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

2.

52

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities”

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities” specifies the disclosure requirements
for subsidiaries, joint arrangements and
associates, and introduces new disclosure
requirements for unconsolidated structure
entities.

The adoption of HKFRS 12 only affects the
disclosures relating to the Group’s associates
in the consolidated financial statements.
HKFRS 12 has been applied retrospectively.

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”
establishes a single source of guidance for all
fair value measurements required or permitted
by HKFRSs. It clarifies the definition of fair
value as an exit price, which is defined as a
price at which an orderly transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability would take
place between market participants at the
measurement date under market conditions,
and enhances disclosures about fair value
measurements.

The adoption of HKFRS 13 only affects
disclosures on fair value measurements in the
consolidated financial statements. HKFRS 13
has been applied prospectively.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The
Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations
and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
e

For the

3.

B R R

year ended 31 December 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of contingent consideration payable
which is carried at its fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
the directors to exercise their judgement in the
process of applying the accounting policies. The
areas involving critical judgement and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

3.

54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to
direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder
has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date the
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a
subsidiary that results in a loss of control
represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus
the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share
of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation (Cont’d)

Intragroup transactions, balances
and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the
equity in subsidiaries not attributable,
directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

3.

56

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Cont’d)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services
are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The
fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
(Cont’d)

If the changes in the value of the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary were
recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, available-for-sale investment),
the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on
the same basis as would be required if the
previously held equity interest were disposed
of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment
or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The
method of measuring impairment losses of
goodwill is the same as that of other assets
as stated in the accounting policy (u) below.
Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated
to cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition
for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

HE—

S

T—=F+"_A=+—HIFE

EXRETHBERE)

(b)

PRHAFZNEEERAR ¢ —E—=FFR

EBavtREEE)

i BRI A 2 M B2 TR
BeEEZHECNEMEE
W A R, (B 20 T {4 4R
&) ARHEMEER AR
ZEREHELNCERAZ
IR RS AT AR E 2 1R[] B e v

S
s ©

BEEFFETRENR -
FESHRBERREERT
BE M IR R B B R 5B SR 1t 3
TRERS - BERBAR
R REBEE - BERE
BHEBZAEREETXE
BRI AEMEE 2
SFELEMERE - BERERS
BRESEENER - A
BATEE o BUREREM
= BEERIEEENE
W B8 = 15 [B) R & T 7 A Al 28
ZHEEEEN -

M8 D B2 I IR 4]
H IR IR R RG2S B
RARKBE B 2 &5 E
EREEZATFRELGIE

=
E°

57



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRARMEE

h
iy

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3.

58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of an entity
but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting
rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a
potential voting right contributes to significant
influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not
considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements by
the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment
and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2013

HE—T— =

+= —=

3.

EN

(c)

=F+-A=+—BIFE

SRR )

BaEnF
BEAAALEENASE
REENER - EAYE

NEEESHEBUERR
EHEZRE  BRESH
,#IETE%UEESBZ% N
AEEREEBEEATE N
B SZEREREFEY
TEITERBERERE
(BIEEMERIEE2EBER
ERIREFE - NFIEHE
EREERGSREREE D
B MARFTREBEATEDS
%%Eﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁéz,‘éﬂ&ﬂﬁ%
BE o

R—EBE QR ZIREUE
mﬁa‘EAiTAEﬂ%#ﬁ%%EJEE
BOSmRAER - RIE
BoBEQRZABAIEE
REERKBEERRATE
TR - WIERABHAEH
BEBE QR TR EER
BEZAVPFEZEZEIE
BE -  mEFAREZREA
B BREEBRBEETKR
BEoRE  AIRIHEHE
HERRERE-SHETRIE
A - AEEEEAEEE
ERBELXVFRFEBHWE
BAZEREZERN G ER
HERD




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRAR AL

=
e

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c)

Associates (Cont’d)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated other comprehensive income.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an
associate that results in a loss of significant
influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the carrying amount
of the investment at the date of disposal and
any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)
(d)
(i)
(i)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)
(d)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities and
of borrowings are recognised in the
exchange reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(i) Translation on consolidation (Cont’d)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates appropriate to write off
their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal useful lives and annual rates are
as follows:

Over the shorter of
unexpired term of lease
and estimated useful
lives, being no more
than 20 years after the
date of completion

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture and office 10% - 33%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
The residual values, useful lives and
depreciation methods are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership
of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses . Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 years.

Research and development expenditure
of computer software

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred. An internally generated
intangible asset is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified
(such as software and new processes);

- It is probable that the asset created will
generate future economic benefits; and

- The development cost of the asset can
be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(h)

(i)

@)

Research and development expenditure
of computer software (Cont’d)

Internally generated intangible assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years
(2012: 5to 10 years). Where no internally
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the first-in, first-out basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

@)

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for
impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the receivables’
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods and recognised in profit or loss when
an increase in the receivables’ recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to the restriction that the
carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

HE—

S

T—=F+"_A=+—HIFE

EXRETHBERE)
() BIARKLEBIASHIA
(#&)

(k)

PRHAFZNEEERAR ¢ —E—=FFR

HRBESH 2B EEEE
fRER ~ BUESRE W - RIBHES
BEAWALLER - RILHE
w2 BEERAERED
REZEZENERER

FE s BR SRR B L At FE WK

Uit B 0 B2 L At B WK 2% [
EH A EENRZIFTER
BEE  HIBENRIRERE
ZHIBHERE AP RAF
BHER  HRRABMAE
EIR O AN HIBRORLE R 1B
AR - ERRBRBREANR
SESEERBEBRRRZ &
MERBEFESEREHR -
B 7 E A U R RR K HL At R
Wz HERRE BES
BARWR Z REELEMGE
ARRERBREMERT 2=
B ROSHISREERR
RIFHR - BESENIESHE

S
7

E FE WK 2 AT U E & BE 4 N
RENERREREEZS
FrEBEE  REBERA
BHEED YN EmE
R RRBTZRESER
RABEREE B 2 REE
TSHBIB I R E
FEREEE 2 BEH RS o

65



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRIt

=
e

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3.

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

()

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are
stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the
holder to convert the loans into a fixed
number of equity instruments at a
fixed conversion price are regarded as
compound instruments that consist of a
liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible debt. The difference
between the proceeds of issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component,
representing the embedded option for
the holder to convert the loans into
equity of the Group, is included in
equity as capital reserve. The liability
component is carried as a liability at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method until extinguished on
conversion or redemption.

The equity component is not
subsequently remeasured.

Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds
based on their relative carrying amounts
at the date of issue. The portion relating
to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(n)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

(0

(i)

(iii)

Sales of goods

Revenues from the sales of
manufactured or trading goods are
recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and the title has
passed to the customers.

Card transaction levies represent service
fee charged by the Group to contracted
merchants at specific rates on the
monetary value of consumptions made
by cardholder settled using the stored
value cards in the merchants’ stores.
Card transaction levies are recognised
as these transactions occur.

Card handling and service charges
consist of monthly maintenance fees
on expired unused balances, new card
handling charges, net of discount or
waivers, and other customer services
charges. The monthly maintenance
fees are recognised when the fees are
deducted from the unused balances at
each month end. The new card handling
charges are recognised when a card
buyer purchases a new card. Other
customer services are recognised when
the services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)
(n)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(o)
(i
(i)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Consultancy income is recognised
when the service is rendered and on the
basis of stage of completion of each
individual project, provided that the
costs involved can be measured reliably.
The stage of completion of a transaction
is established by reference to the
costs incurred to date as compared
to the estimated total costs under the
transaction.

Commission income is recognised when
the service is rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
and long service leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic
salaries. The retirement benefit scheme
cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to
the funds.
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3.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of the dates when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination
benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and employees.
Equity-settled share-based payments are
measured at fair value (excluding the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions) of
the equity instruments at the date of grant.
The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs (Cont’d)

To the extent that funds are borrowed
generally and used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation
rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss
over the period to match them with the costs
they are intended to compensate.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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3.

(2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(s)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(s)

(t)

Taxation (Cont’d)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is
related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the
Company.
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3.

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(t) Related parties (Cont’d)

B)

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(u)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets and intangible assets except -
goodwill, deferred tax assets, inventories and
receivables — to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
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3.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(u)

(v)

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior year. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2013

HE—

3.

T—=F+A=+—HIFE

EXREHBERE)

(u)

v)

BEERME@E)
MERBERERSE  BE
FREELEM 2 REEE
MELER] 2 hEt Al E &
2 IR NAREE Y T8
BN E-—FEWEREENR
ReELBENEIRERFE
171 /B 7E 2 B TE B (FMBR A 8 =
E) - BEBERREER
R HABEEUE
HEREIIERERID - RULBER
T BEBERERAIRER
BERE -

BERIAREE

EAEEREBESMHAARE
BREEJEEEE  ME
TEERA I REHREEF
s - WEEA S EHEAE
SHEZBRT AHELR
BN E ARz a8 EE
wEE - MEBREEAX
ARBERBANAREITZE
E2 R HREHER

fisd A K 7] BE B BB M 27
B REESFEEEASEML
s AIBREERERIA
B1E RFELBFNERE 2
AR R S ERIR o 7
REHBECEE  HREFHE
BERRRBARREESHRE
—REZREHF  THRER
HAREE - BRIFEBENZHR

M= IR

H Z ATREMEABRIE o
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3.

B R R

year ended 31 December 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(w) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of reporting period
or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when
material.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

(@) Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned.
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4.

/8

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes impairment loss for bad
and doubtful debts based on assessments
of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each debtor. Impairments arise where
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of the trade and other
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the
year in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories
Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
made based on the ageing and estimated
net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance
charge/write-back in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. The
Group currently has three cash-generating
units, namely general trading operations
(“CGU 17), prepaid card and related
operations (“CGU 2”)and travellers related
services (“CGU 3”). The total carrying amount
of goodwill at the end of the reporting period
was HK$743,092,000 (2012: HK$940,671,000)
and an impairment loss of HK$228,787,000
(2012: HK$160,499,000) was recognised
during the year. Details of the impairment loss
calculation are set out in note 21 to financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

(d)

Impairment of goodwill (Cont’d)

The key assumptions that the management
made when performing impairment test of
goodwill at end of reporting period are:

For CGU 1:

(1)  The Group will successfully open new
markets by launching certain new
products.

For CGU 2:
(2) The Group will successfully reach the
target number of cardholders and

contracted merchants of its “= & 5 o {4

B4,

The Group will successfully get relevant
licenses for launching “5E i@ e {5 8%
{¥4” in the provinces and cities that
are currently not covered by existing
licenses.

The Group will successfully contract
with new contracted merchants of its “5
FEi@ e 44 {S+" which agree to pay at

the Group’s target minimum rebate rate.

There will be no major policy change
in the PRC which would hinder the
Group’s development of “ 5 & 18 e il 841+
_En.

For CGU 3:
(6)

The Group will successfully increase the
number of sales points for its “tourism
VIP cards” products.

i i
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year ended 31 December 2013

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

(e) Intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives and related amortisation for the Group’s
intangible assets. The useful live of intangible
assets are assessed to be finite, based on the
expected usage and technical obsolescence
from the changes in the market demands or
services output from the assets. Intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised
over the expected useful economic lives and
assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible assets may
be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for the intangible
assets with a finite useful life are reviewed by
the management at least at the end of each
reporting period.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk
The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group
entities had no significant assets or liabilities
denominated in currency other than respective
functional currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
e

B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’q)
(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables and
amounts due from an associate included
in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade receivables. The largest trade
receivables represent approximately 53%
(2012: 35%) of total trade receivables. In
order to minimise credit risk, the directors
have delegated senior management to be
responsible for the determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures. In addition, the directors
review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised
for irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the
directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 5. HHEREE®)

(c) Liquidity risk (c) "BES£RMR

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor AEBCHRATEREZER
current and expected liquidity requirements to ERFERRBESER - #
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of REEERBRSHE U
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the WERRRPRBESS
short and longer term. K e
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial rEECHBEERIEA
liabilities is as follows: DHWT

Less than Between

1year 2to5years
DPR—F WEERHF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F
+=B=+—H
Trade payables FEAFBR X 4,961 -
Accruals and other payables JEIRE AR EMMENTIE 52,675 -
Amounts due to directors e EE A 9,253 -
Convertible bonds BB ES - 120,000
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——F
+=RA=+—-H
Trade payables &1 BR X 10,749 -
Accruals and other payables JEIRE AR EMENTIE 81,187 -
Amounts due to directors EEEFE 5,000 -
Convertible bonds BB ES - 120,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’q)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk
arises from its bank deposits, fixed deposits
and loans to third parties. These deposits and
loans to third parties bear interests at fixed
rate varied with the then prevailing market
condition.

At 31 December 2013, if interest rates at that
date had been 100 basis points lower with all
other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
HK$1,068,000 lower (2012: HK$1,076,000
lower), arising mainly as a result of lower
interest income on these deposits and loans
to third parties. If interest rates had been 100
basis points higher, with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been HK$1,068,000
higher (2012: HK$1,076,000 higher), arising
mainly as a result of higher interest income on
these deposits and loans to third parties.

Categories of financial instruments at
31 December 2013

BE-T =F+-A=+—AIL5E

5.

IEEREE#)

(d)

(e)

R =@ B
REEEH 2 F=E KB

HRITER  EBREARRER
FTE=NEXR - ZSEFAR
RTE=FERRERTN
SECEERERHE o

RZZ2E—=F+ZA=+—
H & B2 FZEK100
BEER  mAEHEMEES
RETE  BFEHRSRE
% ' F FE 28 4 1,068,000
BLT(ZZE—ZF: gD
1,076,000/87t) - TEEH
REEFRRRTE=ZFE
R EBER E WA FTEL - i
FZEGSH100EES - MFT
BHEMEEHRIETE > A
FEAEKRBERENERIZ
501,068,000 T (=& —=
& #H01,076,00058 T) -
FEERHRZEERRRT
F=FERZBESFERA
Frek o

R-—ZFE-—=%+=A
=t+—Hz2mITEEH

2013 2012
—E-=F CZE-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Financial assets: MBEE :
Loans and receivables (including EXNEKRF(EERSE
cash and cash equivalents) RBREZSEY) 213,730 272,852
Financial liabilities: BMKEE :
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFFABR 20
through profit or loss (contingent & & (FEHAKRE)
consideration payable) - -
Financial liabilities measured at REBE AT E 2 BT 7%
amortised cost aE 153,485 170,345
153,485 170,345

i i

FREAFTZNEERRAT ¢ —T—=FFK 83
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(f) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected
in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair
values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into
and transfers out of any of the three levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

Reconciliation of contingent consideration payable
measured at fair value based on level 3:

IR EE ()

M AFE
AEBRESPBRRER
e BEEERMBEER
H{E - BEZHZAFEM
o

DNHERETE
DNFEATHE2RERME AT
—REFXZPHEEEMBEE
EREERNZEE - TXER
DNPERBIRELFEYNEE M
DNPERBIRERE A FERAMG
ERM 2B ABED B=ERE :

Il REEAEREH
WARE . DEZHEREENE
BRERM IS 2 HRE

(REHE) -

A Rl2 BRABI $R1E 2 8 A
WARYE - BBH . EHESE
EBENSCEEN

BERARE -
A3 BEIRBEZATE

WARE - ERARE-

AEBZzBRBNEBREHHER
BRENEHH  BRBEARE
H = ERBIERZ— o

ARBIBLA D FERIE 2 B ARR
B2HR -

2012

—E-F

HK$’000

FET

At 1 January W—B—8 472,848

Settlements (Note 30) B (MFEE30) (220,208)
Fair value change recognised in RERER 2 AT EEE

profit or loss (Note 30) (Bff3E30) (252,640)

At 31 December R+=A=+—H =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Cont’d) 6. ANFERHEEE)
The total gains recognised in profit or loss including RESEIZRANRERENHRER
those for liabilities held at the end of reporting BEEBFEZZEE8E IR
period are presented in the consolidated statement BERREY -

of profit or loss.

7. TURNOVER 7. X

2013 2012
—E-=5F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sale of goods HEEM 121,303 188,526
Rendering of services BRI 21,593 24,279
142,896 212,805

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HlkA
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E—-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Interest income FE YA 3,213 3,889
Compensation receivable FEWE - 3,000
Government grant BT EL 569 -
Others Hity 161 142
3,943 7,031
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. ZEEH
The Group has three reportable segments as AEBEUT=EU2®/E :
follows:
General - trading of mobile phones, computer, —-REHZ - BEEFH- -EK-
trading communication equipments, WA - B
currency sorters and other goods IHREMER
Prepaid — provision of prepaid card payment FANFEHE - RPEARAENE
card services and consultancy services; (I E D RERS
business  and marketing and sale of consumer R RREREH
goods in form of prepaid gift cards R . RRFPEIE
in the People’s Republic of China BRENBYFEHE
(“the PRC”) SEEHEEEEER
Travellers - provision of air-ticketing services eEAEE - RERERBRME
related and related customer services AR 7% =P R
services
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic TEEZAEHRsERARMEERE
business units that offer different products and R BRAE 2 R MR B E L - 2%
services. They are managed separately because PEARERERMRMSHERE
each business requires different technology and REAEMBELER -
marketing strategies.
The Group’s other operating segment includes rEE HMKEE P BEEETT
certain inactive operations. None of the segment SRR o WA BEAREZRER
meets any of the quantitative thresholds for AUEZBIBE22/ME -  HitK
determining reportable segment. The information EREEREHN Hitt |—48 -
of the other operating segment is included in the
‘others’ column.
The accounting policies of the operating segments ReE oGt BREYERKM
are the same as those described in note 3 to the EFTENRE o D EHERHEET
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do BEREEGEROIGHIE - RE
not include equity-settled share-based payment, WA - BERE- TBRRESEER
dividend income, goodwill impairment, imputed ME - REREZWEREERE
interest on convertible bonds, gains or losses from NIRARELFELEB NG - 58
investments and changes in fair value of contingent EETEERBELENEEE - B
consideration payable. Segment assets do not 2 CEWEEALRE BRERT
include deferred tax assets, goodwill, amounts due TR DEFRBEETERS
from related parties, investments and derivative MITE - EEREEERHE -
instruments. Segment non-current assets do not
include financial instruments, deferred tax assets
and goodwill.
The Group accounts for intersegment sales and AEEROE=HFUERTISFER
transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third ETZRER o EEEERER
parties, i.e. at current market prices. AR -
86 China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2013 >~
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 9. EERE)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss EBRUERIERAIEEREE
and assets: ZERWMT :
Prepaid  Travellers
General card related
trading business services Others Total
-REZ  BEAFEE  EREEEERS Hity Rt

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TiER TER TER TER

Year ended BE2-2-=F+ZR

31 December 2013 =t-BLEE
Revenue from external ~ REMFZ B 2 Wiz

customers 98,213 39,302 5,381 - 142,896
Segment profit/(loss) PEEHN/ (BB 9,069 (4,258) (14,984) (746) (10,919)
Interest income FIEWA 1,466 1,661 86 - 3,213
Depreciation and HEREH

amortisation (1,605) (1,173) (1,265) - (4,043)

Other material items: HipEAER -

- Gain on fair value -R-BHELRRE

change of investment DY ESENE

in an associate - 1,273 - - 1,273
- Impairment of -BREERE

intangible assets (933) - - - (933)
- Impairment of -l —BHe 0T

amount due from HIEHE

an associate (2,865) - (1,868) - (4,733)
- Additions to segment - FELEERBEE

non-current assets 2,018 739 4,406 - 7,163
As at 31 December R-B-=F

2013 +=B=+-8

Segment assets PREE 81,467 145,141 12,931 392 239,931
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 9. 2EERE)
Prepaid Travellers
General card related
trading business services Others Total
—RE BAFER  RERERE Hite CHI

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’600 HK$°000
THT TR TR T TR
(restated) (restated)

(E7)) (&%)
Year ended BE-E-—F+C
31 December 2012 A=+-BLEE
Revenue from external  REMIZE vz
customers 168,118 44,449 - 238 212,805
Intersegment revenue PEEKE - 1,826 - - 1,826
Segment profit/(loss) 2R/ (FE) 37,833 9,112 (1,727) 1,747 46,965
Interest income FIEWA 707 3,163 19 - 3,889
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation (1,930) (774) (17) (410) (3,131)
Other material items: HEEAEE
- Impairment of -R-EEENT
investment in RERE
an associate - (822) - - (822)
- Additions to segment - FBAHEERE
non-current assets BE 148 4,131 701 2,000 6,980
As at 31 December 2012 R=ZE-—%+=8
=+-H
Segment assets PEEE 90,249 194,659 11,391 4,242 300,541

88 China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2013 >~




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_Z—=F+"_A=+—HILFE
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 9. 2EERE)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, A2 EWE  BABEBUAR
profit or loss and assets: BEEZHER:
2013 2012

—E-=F —E—_—F
HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FET

Revenue U=
Total revenue of reportable segments A 2355 2 WF 4 %E 142,896 214,631
Elimination of intersegment revenue 5 3aRIUREE 444 - (1,826)
Consolidated revenue LREWE 142,896 212,805
Profit or loss AR E B
Total profit or loss of reportable A 2H 5B RFSEE

segments BEE (10,919) 46,965
Unallocated corporate income and RAOFMEXWARBEX

expense, net FE (11,744) (16,447)
Impairment of goodwill [GESEREN (228,787) (160,499)
Gain on fair value change of FERSRAREAFEEE

contingent consideration payable Y zs - 252,640
Equity-settled share-based payment IR E IR D TFIE (9,173) (6,022)
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ESHEERIS (13,187) (12,283)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before KBTS AAES (E5E)

income tax A (273,810) 104,354
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments 2R EcEERAT 239,931 300,541
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE 1,918 1,866
Amount due from an associate FEUR — BB N B FRIB - 4,106
Goodwill SRS 743,092 940,671
Other corporate assets Hibhb¥EE 2,637 4,666
Consolidated total assets REEEARE 987,578 1,251,850
Geographical information: wEER
No separate analysis of segment information ARAEE 2 WHZRERBEEE
by geographical information is presented as the ERENRE—IEEIE(BHE)
Group’s revenue and non-current assets are FHit W |25 IEE RS D 2B
principally attributable to a single geographical NDEERDH -

region, which is the PRC.
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year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 9. 2EERE)
Revenue from major customers: REFEEFZIWE !
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
General trading segment —-REZDE
Largest customer BRAEF 34,117 55,915
Second largest customer -ty 4 = 24,145 42,561
Third largest customer BE=ZREPF 18,042 14,739
FINANCE COSTS 10. BB
2013 2012
—E-=5 —E——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FiET
Interest on bank loans RITERAE - 88
Imputed interest on convertible AR ESEERR
bonds (Note 31) (HF5E31) 13,187 12,283
13,187 12,371
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FrEHipxX
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Current tax — the PRC BIHARRIE —
Provision for the year FRRE 4,798 13,907
Under-provision in prior years BEFERBTE 129 99
4,927 14,006
Deferred tax (Note 32) IEFERTE (FEE32) - (1,249)
4,927 12,757
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_Z—=F+"_A=+—HILFE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 1. FrSHiBZ @)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required RSB F R & EL ERR G
since the Group has no assessable profit for the A I RAEE B EBRIERIRE -
year.
Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have Hihith BERF GF 2 HIEX HiR
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the AEEERFAERRZBRTHE
countries in which the Group operates, based on WRIEBFEREBREEE - RBKEH
existing legislation, interpretation and practices in & e
respect thereof.
The new PRC enterprise income tax law passed by FETRZBEBARKKRASR_ZZ
the Tenth National People’s Congress on 16 March tE=ZA+RABBZHPELE
2007 introduces various changes which include e ESIANZEEE - BFEKA
the unification of the enterprise income tax rate for ERNECEZLEMERFRE
domestic and foreign enterprises at 25%. The new —R25% c ZFBUERBE=ZEN
tax law becomes effective from 1 January 2009. F—A—BEEXM -
The reconciliation between the income tax expense FREHBE X ERE A (BEB) 5k
and the product of (loss)/profit before tax multiplied FUPBIEERSBRERGER
by the PRC enterprise income tax rate is as follows: ZERRAT ¢
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (E518), B R (273,810) 104,354
Tax at the PRC enterprise income BHEBEMERRE25%
tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) AECBE(ZE——F
25%) (68,452) 26,089
Tax effect of income that BARBIMA 2 KL
is not taxable - (63,163)
Tax effect of expenses that FAIMNFAZ 2B E e
are not deductible 65,563 47777
Tax effect of temporary differences  RERHRZHHESE
not recognised 55 -
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KRB FARERFRIEEE 2
recognised Mg e 9,148 3,580
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B UFRERHIEEBE>
not previously recognised B (793) (376)
Reversal of provision of PRC FREIR EFR IR B AR E
dividend withholding tax - (1,249)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERBTE 129 99
Effect of different tax rates of B AR TERE &
subsidiaries (723) -
Income tax expense Fri8RiB 4,927 12,757
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

12. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is stated after

P

BE-T-=4+-A=+—AIL5E

12. REE(HR) EF

AEBRAEE 2 (BE), %R

charging the following: HIRUTHEZSIE ¢
2013 2012
—B-=F ZE-CF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Auditor’s remuneration G 1,092 950
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 1,460 569
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 90,830 128,804
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREZEITE
equipment 2,656 2,562
Directors’ emoluments EEME
— As directors —{EAES 501 498
- For management —(EBEERE 5,176 4,214
5,677 4,712
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEYE  MENREBEE
and equipment 5 198
Operating leases charges e 6,939 6,010
Exchange loss [E R EiE 381 115
Property, plant and equipment WEEMZE ~ BE KRB
written off 82 -
Trade receivables written off 5 FE U BR 3K - 774
Other receivables written off Hif g EL A FE U B 659 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables  FEUBRZRE R 18 1,080 -
Impairment of intangible assets | EERE 933 -
Impairment of goodwill EERE 228,787 160,499
Impairment of amount due from FEUR — B X BRI IERIE
an associate 4,733 -
Impairment of investment in an R—REBE AR 2RERE
associate - 822
Staff costs including directors’ ETRA(BEESEHH)
remuneration
Salaries, bonus and allowances TE - T4 RIZERY 29,468 20,804
Equity-settled share-based IR E RN ST FRIR
payments 9,173 6,022
Contribution to retirement benefit BIRIERIFT B
schemes 7,686 4,669
46,327 31,495
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-T =F+-A=+—AIL5E

13. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. E=kEEME

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) E=#M<
The emoluments of each of the directors were BREECHESUT -
as follows:
Equity-  Retirement
Salaries settled benefit
and share-based scheme Total
Name of director Fees allowances  payments contributions remuneration
 BREEBH  EiEA
302 e IEREE 0 xfiRE HEAER BEH
HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0
THn TEn ThR TEn TEn
Year ended 31 December 2013 BEZ-E--E1CR
St-ALEE
Executive directors HnES
Guan Guisen BEH - 1,800 - 15 1,815
Lei Chunxiong By - 1,200 - 15 1,215
Cao Chunmeng BEH - 1,200 931 15 2,146
- 4,200 931 45 5176
Independent non-executive directors  Bus#i1TES
Wang Zhongmin 12K 120 - 4 - 167
Gu Jiawang AEH 120 - 4 - 167
Fong Chi Wah FEE 120 - 47 - 167
360 4,200 1,072 45 5677
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-E-"E+CR
Zt-ALEE
Executive directors BiTES
Guan Guisen BEh - 1,800 - 15 1815
Lei Chunxiong e - 1,200 - 15 1,215
Cao Chunmeng (i) EEH() - 5% 583 8 1,185
- 3,594 583 38 4,215
Non-executive director FTEs
Li Yuezhong i) ZRA(i) 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive directors  BuFEHTES
Wang Zhongmin IER 120 - 29 - 149
Gu Jiawang AEH 120 - 29 - 149
Fong Chi Wah FEE 120 - 29 - 149
410 3,594 670 38 4,712
0] Appointed on 11 July 2012 @) E%;%—Zﬁtﬁ TR
(ii) Resigned on 31 May 2012 (ii) QEE—ZEEH =o =]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g e
For the year ended 31 December 2013

13. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’
emoluments
The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included 3 (2012: 3) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments

BE-T-=4+-A=+—AIL5E

13. EENEEME (®)

(b) HEESFMALZHME
FAXEEzEERSHHN
ATBE=R(Z2—_F:
=ZR)ES HMEHRN EX
FRIIZ A > BR T A (=
E-_F WB)ALTZHME

of the remaining 2 (2012: 2) individuals are set ;I
out below:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
Basic salaries and allowances BEARTERER 1,154 1,394
Retirement benefit scheme RREF T EIER
contributions 15 37
Equity-settled share-based IRREEE R D T FRIE
payments 705 235
1,874 1,666
The remuneration fell within the following NFTHIEE = B
band:
Number of individuals
AE
2013 2012
—B-=F —E-=-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/& 7T 2 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to any of the directors or the
highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R Myt

For the year ended 31 December 2013

14.

15.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are
calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject
to a monthly maximum amount of contribution of
HK$1,250 per employee (2012: January - May 2012
of HK$1,000 per employee and June — December
2012 of HK$1,250 per employee) and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension
scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to
the central pension scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the scheme.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

COMPANY

The (loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company included a loss of approximately
HK$247,104,000 (2012: profit of HK$199,978,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

i i

i

HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

14.

15.

B NEEBRAR e —F

BIKERIETE

AEBEREETBREMEAESTE
GHIR L BE M ABeT 8 ([®E
ﬁ‘wLiJJ) HETESERBRBES
28 o REBERBESFE 2 HR
BNOEBEIERFESZ5%TE ' 5
ZEESAMIRERSA1,2508 T
(ZBE——F  RZZT—_-F—AZF
FRAEREE10008T KNS
—:E/\ﬂiJr BE#{EE1,250
BIT) » WHRIRIERE ST BT
é%zﬁm#ﬁgo

EHRBR L2 AEEHEARES
SEE M RS 2 P RIBRRET
g - ZSMBARAARBREEER
TERFEZETADL  BIFR
RRETEIEFR - UEBIRIKER -

BT B ER - SREZSHE
REFBRERAKERKRZEBE 2
RABHNEE - ZSHBAREE
Z P RRET 2 i - B ERRE
sTEMEH AT -

RRRBEBEABEFER (B
18),&8F

RAREEAELER(EB), &
%U@?EEBAN‘TW%WQQFIEZ
réﬁaﬂﬁzw 104,000/8 7t (= =
F 1 % F)199,978, ooo,%rc) °

—FFER 95



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ERAR FTRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. SR (EE) BRI
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/ ARREEAEBEERERR#E
earnings per share attributable to owners of the (B518), BRIDRBUTEIETE
Company is based on the following:
2013 2012
—E-= —E-CF
HK$000 HK$’000
THET TET
(Loss)/earnings (B58)/ B
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of calculating ~ B{E:IEBRERKE#E
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (B#8) /Bl (58) /BF (279,352) 91,362
Number of shares ('000) RAEE (TR)
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—B—BeRfT2E@ER 4,707,139 3,964,639
Effect of exercise of share options TEERE 22 - 16,926
Effect of conversion of convertible bonds RRTRRES 2 TE - 424,905
Weighted average number of RETEBRERRAIZ
ordinary shares for the purpose EBRMET I
of calculating basic earnings per share 4,707,139 4,406,470
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares EXBERTEBREZ
arising from share options outstanding EEEEEER2TE N/A 8,568
TER
Weighted average number of R EEREEER 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating L@ MEFLIE
diluted earnings per share N/A 4,415,038
TER
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the effects BE-Z—= $ +=A = +—AH1
of the Company’s potential ordinary share are either FE - N Zi"é‘&%@ﬂ&ﬂﬁfﬁ
anti-dilutive or no dilutive effect as the exercise BRERBBHE - REREHE 2
prices are above the average share price during TRRBEENFIREN T BN
the reporting period. No diluted loss per share was B BBEREE—S—=F+=
presented for the year ended 31 December 2013. A=+—HLFE25ESREEE
B
17. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 17. H&KEMY%
2013 2012
—2-=F —2-——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET TET
Payment for settlement of a dispute (Note) T#E-EFE AR (M) - 6,000
Note: As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 4 Mz : BAARBMA-ZT-—-FtADO
July 2012, the Company agreed to pay HK$6 million for B2RE&ERE  ALAREXN
final and conclusive settlement of the dispute between 6,000,0003% JT4E B A A T B2 3% R E
the Company and Luck Fame International Investment BB EEBERATMULZBAR
Holdings Limited. RETHEE > MR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. % - MEKRE®B

Group
S 3|
Leasehold  Furniture
improve-  and office Motor
ments equipment vehicles Total
HEMx BRAK
®E  WAERE AE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET THET
Cost A
At 1 January 2012 W-E-—%-H—-H 1,769 5,701 502 7,972
Additions NE 148 2,093 - 2,241
Disposals/written off HE /Hish (416) (178) - (594)
Exchange differences EHER 6 57 3 66
At 31 December 2012 and E/\ E-"F+ZB=+-H
1 January 2013 “E-=f-H-H 1,507 7,673 505 9,685
Additions % 1,853 1,318 - 3,171
Acquisition of a subsidiary Llﬁz,ﬂﬁ—F'Eﬁ MEAT 25 266 - 291
Disposals/written off HE sk (310) (148) - (458)
Exchange differences ERER 72 237 15 324
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=%+=-A=1+—H 3,147 9,346 520 13,013
Accumulated depreciation  R:HifE
At 1 January 2012 RZZ—-—fF—-fA—H 622 1,064 149 1,835
Charge for the year KEEEYL 792 1,606 164 2,562
Disposals/written off HeE /s (337) (59) - (396)
Exchange differences EXESR 5 17 2 24
At 31 December 2012and ~ RZZE-—#+=f=1-A
1 January 2013 F=E-=F-A—H 1,082 2,628 315 4,025
Charge for the year ZFEF 553 480 2,061 115 2,656
Disposals/written off HE /Hish (310) (60) - (370)
Exchange differences EXESR 40 104 12 156
At 31 December 2013 R-—Z-=F+=-A=1+-H 1,292 4,733 442 6,467
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=5+ZA=+-H 1,855 4,613 78 6,546
At 31 December 2012 RZBE——-#+-F=+—H 425 5,045 190 5,660
REAFTE N EEERAR « —T—=FF5§ 97
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ERAR FTRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. B ARIZIRE
Company
PN
2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FELEHmERE - BERAE 1,018,088 1,018,088
Less: impairment losses B OREEER (231,000) (18,000)

787,088 1,000,088

Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG EE 130,267 135,305
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEH B A RFIE 825 795
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are EEH&/K@NW%’&\E%&EE%?&
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. s RERBREREE -
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December M B A & R=F-=Z%5+=A
2013 are as follows: =t+—HZFHBEOT :
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid up
registration and capital/ registered
operation capital Percentage of
Name Rl WNE11)4 ERTREMKEA  ownership interest Principal activities
g B HMmEX BEEERASL TEEK
Direct Indirect
B &
Country Praise Enterprises British Virgin Island 769,231 ordinary 100% - Investment holding
Limited (“Country Praise”) ~ HBEZEE shares of no REER
par value
769,231 R EEEZ
LER
China Prepay Group Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Inactive
58 10,000 1t Tmex
Splendid Win Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
BB 10,000 7t REZR
Bright Voyage Limited British Virgin Island ~ US$50,000 - 100% Investment holding
RERLHE 50,000% 7T RERRK
Bright Voyage Global Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Inactive
58 10,000 1t TmeE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 19. RMIBRRZIRE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid up
registration and capital/ registered
operation capital Percentage of
Name B3l ANed1) ERTREMKA/  ownership interest Principal activities
£ EXE afER BERERASN TEXK
Direct Indirect
Hi B
BHRAE (IR) REEZABMRAT The PRC RMB123,330,000 - 100% Trading of mobile
(Beijing Shangyin Investment AK#123,330,0007T phones and computer
Consultancy Co. Ltd.) equipments
BERDEERELRE
tRXEAEREEREAERLA  The PRC RMB101,000,000 - 100% Information system
([tZXBEMR] ) e AER#101,000,0007T maintenance and
(Beijing Tiantongsaibo development services
Information Technology Co. EEAGERERHRRY
Ltd.) (“Beijing Tiantongsaibo”)
IR EBELEEARLR The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% Provision of prepaid
(Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial #E AK®100,000,0007T card and related
Management Co. Ltd.) customer services
REBNFREERR
FR#%
EREHERSEREERAT  ThePRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Provision of prepaid
([EBEE]) s AEK#5,000,0007C card and related
(Shenyang Shanglian Huitong customer services
Commercial Services Co. Ltd.) RUERMFRIEERF
(“Shenyang Shanglian”) R
NERSERRERA T The PRC RMB4,000,000 - 80% Provision of prepaid
([HmsEs]) s AEK#4,000,0007T card and related
(Hangzhou Qianbao Gaohui customer services
Technology Co. Ltd.) RERSFREERR
(“Hangzhou Qianbao”) R
EERENEBREERAT The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Inactive
(Shengyang Tonghui Technology B AR#5,000,0007 FRER
Development Co. Ltd.)
TREARAHERRLA The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Prepaid gift card

(MBELRSEBHEERAR) TE
(Beijing Zhixiang Chuangfu
Commercial Co. Ltd.)
(Formerly known as 1t =S ER
BEARAF)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ERAR FTRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 19. RMIBRRZIRE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid up
registration and capital/ registered
operation capital Percentage of
Name SR MK ERIRESMRA,  ownership interest Principal activities
1 B afER BEREREIL TEER
Direct Indirect
B E
PEREBEBRAT The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Prepaid gift card
(Shanghai Jinghui Commercial  # ] AK™1,000,0007T marketing and sales
Co. Ltd.) AR FERREE
EmsEBRERRAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Inactive
(Jinan Gaohuitong Commercial AER#1,000,0007T L%
Co. Ltd.)
IMSEREERAR The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Inactive
(Hangzhou Gaohuitong H AR#2,000,0007 EELY
Commercial Co. Ltd.)
FTEHEESLEEERAT The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Prepaid phone card
( DRy ) HE AK#2,000,0007 distribution
(Shenzhen Shanglian Huitong SRR
Commercial Management
Co. Ltd.) (“Shenzhen
Shanglian”)
SR (LR BEERAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
(Kopu (Beijing) Technology AR#10,000,0007 REER
Co. Ltd.)
SFEERZERE(IR)BRAT ThePRC RMB1,500,000 - 100% Online air-ticket agency
(Kopu Ticket Agency Service A AK#1,500,0007T business
(Beijing) Co. Ltd.) RIRERERE
BEER (LR EFHEERERL The PRC RMB4,000,000 - 95% Travellers related
A(EE)) H AR#4,000,0007 services in the PRC
(Kanghui Financial (Beijing) AFRELZ SRS BB AR S
E-Commerce Co. Ltd.)
(“Kanghui”)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R ERAR BT RE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BE-T =F+-A=+—AIL5E

20. BILEE

Group
rEE
Computer
Customer software
relationship (internally
(Note 36(a)) generated) Total
EFEF SREH
(Bf=E36(a)) (REEE) &&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FTHET
Cost BLAR
At 1 January 2012 N-—ZE——H—H—H - 4,386 4,386
Additions wE - 4,739 4,739
Exchange differences =R - 89 89
At 31 December 2012 and HA=ZE—=—HF+=-A=+—H
1 January 2013 r—E-=%—H—H - 9,214 9,214
Acquisition of a subsidiary  UEBkIE A 7 255 - 255
Additions NE - 3,446 3,446
Exchange differences BN ERE 7 303 310
At 31 December 2013 R—B—=H+-HA=+—8 262 12,963 13,225
Accumulated amortisation 2 # 4 & FEEE
and impairment loss
At 1 January 2012 R=ZE-ZF—-F—H - - -
Charge for the year AEERL - 569 569
Exchange differences =R - 6 6
At 31 December 2012 and R=-ZE——F+-A=+—H
1 January 2013 K==E-—=%—-H—H - 575 575
Charge for the year REERX 39 1,421 1,460
Impairment loss HEEE - 933 933
Exchange differences EHER 1 46 47
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=5+=-A=+-—-AH 40 2,975 3,015
Carrying amount AREE
At 31 December 2013 HNZZE—=F+=-A=+—H 222 9,988 10,210
At 31 December 2012 R-E——-—H5+=-A=+—AH - 8,639 8,639
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ERAR FTRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

21. GOODWILL 21
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating
units (“CGUs”) that are expected to benefit from

e
REBESHFESZEEDRKE
KOG ZRBMKEZEBEHPZ
BEreHeELEBEN(REELE

182

that business combination. fiz]) o
General  Prepaid card Travellers
trading and related related services
operations operations (Note 36 (a))
(‘CGU 1) (CGU 2") (CGU 3) Total
BAFR RERBRE
-REZEH EBEE (FiriE 36(a))
(ReEEEN1]) (ReELEM2)) (REELENS)) fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn T AR
Cost FiA&
At 1 January 2012 RZE-ZF-A-H 211,265 881,107 - 1,092,372
Exchange differences EREE 2,079 8,546 - 10,625
At 31 December 2012 and RZB-ZE+ZA=1-HR
1 January 2013 “E-=%-f-H 213,344 889,653 - 1,102,997
Acquisition of a subsidiary s - EHE LT - - 4,691 4,691
Exchange differences EREH 5,986 24,959 126 31,071
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=£4+-A=1-H 219,330 914,612 4,817 1,138,759
Accumulated impairment losses  ZitHEEE
At1 January 2012 W-B--—£-F-H - - - -
Impairment loss recognised inthe  WAEER 2 HERE
current year - 160,499 - 160,499
Exchange differences EREH - 1,827 - 1,827
At 31 December 2012 and R-B-ZETZA=T-8RK
1 January 2013 —E-£-B-H - 162,326 - 162,326
Impairment loss recognised inthe  WAFER 2 HEEE
current year 164,794 63,993 - 228,787
Exchange differences EREH - 4,554 - 4554
At 31 December 2013 RW-E-=%+-F=+-AH 164,794 230,873 - 395,667
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2013 W-B-=£+-A=t+-H 54,536 683,739 4,817 743,092
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—&F+-A=1-8 213,344 127,327 - 940,671
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R Myt

For the year ended 31 December 2013

21.

GOODWILL (cont’d)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions
for discounted cash flow method are set out in note
4(d) to the financial statements and those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted
gross margin and turnover during the period. The
Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The growth rates are based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGUs operate.
Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based
on past practices and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the directors for the next five years with the residual
period using the growth rate of 3% (2012: 3%). This
rate does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant markets.

The pre-tax rates used to discount the forecast
cash flows from the Group’s CGU 1, CGU 2 and
CGU 3 are 31.26% (2012: 21.29%), 30.60% (2012:
19.00%) and 33.04% (2012: N/A) respectively.

Due to changes in market condition and the
Group’s marketing strategy, the Group has revised
its cash flow forecasts for CGU 1 and CGU 2.
The goodwill allocated to CGU 1 and CGU 2 has
therefore been impaired by HK$164,794,000 (2012:
Nil) and HK$63,993,000 (2013: HK$160,499,000)
respectively.
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21.

B NEEBRAR e —F

[EEE 2,

ReELBNzARESEI&E
RABBRREREEFAELAEER
BE - - WRBEEREZLEHRT KR
KIMFAARAIFRAZEERR A
HRE@E2HRE  BRE - BE
ENMEREXEE - AEBERAAR

MEATmSEHEEREZTFERER
CELBNZIEER ZBRIFATL

EEHARE  MERARBLE
EENSEERHENE S RDT
WERRERAEE  BEERE

& 2D AT AR AR S
BRAEE

AEEFR2BEREEA - TR
BEESHAERRAFERFGH™E
ZERZEAIW(ZE—ZF :3%)
ZERITHHEE - ZIBRETHE
BEETSZFIIRPIERE o

Fﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬂ-‘%ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ
CBHEeELEBEN2RREELEE
1LSEE%/)ILEZ|Z?\$E%1IIZIS_E/-\}DJJEEJ
31.26% (=ZF—=%F : 21.29%) »
30.60%(23—:$ ©19.00%) &
33.04% (ZB—=F : F@EH) -

ERmigakArEB & HER
B AEECEITHRREELEE
NIRBREELEBEN2EHZEER
EfER c Bt PEIEHEEELSE
NIRBEELEEN22HEES D
BIR{E 164,794,0008 T (=& —=
E %)&63993000,%7‘5( =z
: 160,499,000 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ERAR FTRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
22. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 22. R—REEEATZRE
2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET
Unlisted investment in the PRC: RHPBEZFELHRE :
Goodwill eSS - 822
Fair value of 25% equity interest 25% B A 2 N FE 1,273 -
Deemed acquisition cost of BAEWUB B D B A
subsidiary (Note 36(a)) (BtzE36(a)) (1,273) -
- 822
Impairment losses HEEE - (822)
Amount due from an associate FEUR — RSB N Bl EhIE
- non-current —IERE - 4,106
The amount due from an associate is unsecured FE—EEE A REAEIRER
and interest free. RE o
Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December REFBBMENTNR_-_E——F+=
2012 are as follows: A=+—HZ#HBWNT :
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity interest
registration and attributable to
operation the Group
Name SMMI/ 8  Registered capital A&£BEERE  Principal activities
£ REXME HEMER Ba TEER
REHR(LR)EFEABERSEE The PRC RMB4,000,000 25% Travellers related
AR EE)) g AE#4,000,0007T services in the PRC
(Kanghui Financial (Beijing) RHE 2 ik E Bk
E-Commerce Co. Ltd.) &
(“Kanghui”)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

22.

23.

BE-T =F+-A=+—AIL5E

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont’d) 22. N—EBMELT2REE)

The following table shows information of an
associate that is material to the Group. The
associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method. The

TRIVIHAREEEE Nz — B
ERRER - BEQREAERE
RERS BB MRATIIR = F7 518175
BERBEURE QR 2 BB B R

summarised financial information presented is HEBIERRBELE -
based on the HKFRS financial statements of the
associate.
2012
—E——F
HK$’000
FET
At 31 December: R+=—B=+—8":
Non-current assets FEREEE 895
Current assets REEE 1,612
Current liabilities REaE (7,178)
Net liabilities FaE (4,671)
Group’s share of net liabilities REEREGFAE (1,168)
Year ended 31 December: BE+-—A=+—HLEE:
Revenue g 2,705
Loss for the year REEFE (3,043)
INVENTORIES 23. &
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—EBE—-=F —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Work in progress B3 O - 1,229
Finished goods Rk T 1,921 880
1,921 2,109
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24.

ST B
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. FEURERRX
The Group’s trading terms with customers are AEEREF2EFHRREEAR
mainly on credit. The credit terms generally range B - EEH—MRNFI0ZE60A - ¥
from 30 to 60 days. For new customers, payment RFEFPMS » —RETRMNAKIE -
in advance is normally required. The Group seeks REBEEARUWE 2 B U TR A B A
to maintain strict control over its outstanding 2 o EETHEIRBELER o
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by the directors.
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade AEBZRWERM (REZER B
receivables, based on the invoice date, and net of 5 WEREE) 2RE oM
allowance, is as follows: T
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E-——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHERT FHET
Up to 30 days 30HZA 40,050 33,199
31 to 60 days 31AE60H 1,424 10,446
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H 841 4,137
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 2,147 12,876
Over 181 days 181HU L 4,108 221
48,570 60,879
As at 31 December 2013, an allowance was made N-E—=5+=-B=+—HHH
for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables for HAGWE 2 ERRS/EEBED
approximately HK$1,094,000 (2012: Nil). 1,094,000 T (ZF——F : i) o
Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables: FEUN BREER 12548 2 HHER -
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
At 1 January B—A—H - -
Allowance for the year FRBE 1,080 -
Exchange difference [EHER 14 -
At 31 December WNt+=-—H=+—H 1,094 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R Myt

For the year ended 31 December 2013

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 24. FEWEBRFR (&)
As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of R-CEFE—=F+=-"HA=1+-— EI
HK$6,394,000 (2012: HK$20,616,000) were past & W BR 7% 6,394,00078 7T (= =
due but not impaired. These relate to a number of F : 20,616, 000/§75)E,tﬁﬂ155ﬁﬂ
independent customers for whom there is no recent B - ZEX Iﬁ,ﬂ%%ﬁ,ﬁﬂ,ﬂi%kﬂ
history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade B2BIUEFER ZERWIRER
receivables is as follows: ZEREBR DT ¢
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E-——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Up to 30 days 0B ZA 140 4,371
31 to 60 days 31H&60H 471 6,709
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H 994 8,661
91 to 180 days 91H=180H 1,533 875
Over 181 days 181HU L 3,256 -
6,394 20,616
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade R-B-——FR-ZF-=5+=A
receivables are denominated in RMB as at 31 _'I' B AEBEWERRZER
December 2012 and 2013. BUAARMEGHE -
25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FE{JFIE » e R HEMEW
RECEIVABLES EN
Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Prepayments Fa{FRIE 9,865 18,184
Deposits ®Be 31,559 33,214
Other receivables (Note) = A ENGIED) 23,962 31,228
65,386 82,626
Long-term deposits classified as PEAFRBEEZRD
non-current assets Be (28,216) (27,421)
37,170 55,205
FREFYNEBERAR © —T—=FFR 107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ERAR FTRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FEff#IE » ZE& R HMER

RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) ENE
Note: MieE
The other receivables contain loans to independent third- HiERREEOUTELE=FFHzE
parties as follows: E
Group
AEEH
Name Terms 2013 2012
®E 15X —E-=F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FiExT
Company A Guaranteed by a third-party, interest
NFEA bearing at 4.8% per annum and
repayable on 9 January 2014
ME=ZFER  FREHR48% AR
“Z-mE-ANBEE 3,837 -
Guaranteed by a third-party, interest
bearing at 10% per annum,
HK$2,426,000 and HK$1,324,000
repayable on 23 May 2013 and 27
June 2013 respectively
ME=ZFER  FANEH10%  ED 5
REBE-—Z=ZHFRAZ+=ZARZE—=
FRA =+t B1EE2,426,0008 TR
1,324,000/& 7T - 3,750
Company B Unsecured, interest bearing at 15% per
~ATFIB annum and repayable on 24 April 2013
BIRR > FRER15%  BR-ZF—=F
mMA=+HmHEE - 3,732
Company C Guaranteed by a third-party, interest
A®E]C bearing at 1.25% per month and
repayable on 22 July 2014
HE=SER » FRRH1.25% @ AR
“E-NFELA=+=HEE 4,090 -
7,927 7,482
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

26.

27.

BE-T =F+-A=+—AIL5E

BANK AND CASH BALANCES 26. WRITRBEEH
As at 31 December 2013, the bank and R-B-—=5+=ZA=+—H XK
cash balances of the Group denominated in SEUARBFAEZRITRESE
RMB amounted to HK$105,778,000 (2012: 843 105,778,000 T (=& — =
HK$140,636,000). Conversion of RMB into F 1 140,636,00087T) - ARK K
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign BINE BB ECH B INE B R RHI)
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration RAGEE - EERNEEERTE) °
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.
As at 31 December 2013, bank balances of R-B-—=5+=ZA=+—H R
HK$37,140,000 (2012: HK$69,481,000) were 1T#58837,140,0008 T (= &E— =
restricted for the purpose of settlement obligation as F 69,481,000 7T ) a0 FIEF28 st
set out in note 28. ZREANEESE -
TRADE PAYABLES 27. FEJERR
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, AEBZEMNER(ZRKIEREH
based on the date of receipt of goods, is as follows: AE)ZRESMWT ¢
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 4,394 7,853
91 to 180 days 91H %1801 174 2,870
181 to 365 days 181H£365H 373 26
Over 365 days 365HM £ 20 -
4,961 10,749

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables
are denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2012
and 2013.

w JUF
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RZEBE-—ZERZFE-—=F+2ZA
=+—H  XEBREMERAX KT
BEUARKEEHE -
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28.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. FTAIREANHMENAR
Group
LW
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E-——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Settlement obligation (Note) HE S () 37,140 69,481
Receipt in advance SR 7,880 14,698
Accruals and other payables FEIRERAREMENT 15,535 11,706
60,555 95,885

29.

110

Note:

The settlement obligations are recognised upon issuance of
prepaid cards and receipt of respective funds. The amount
represents unused fund balances of the prepaid cards
that the Group obligates to remit funds to the contracted
merchants when cardholders make purchase transactions
using the prepaid cards, the settlement basis is normally the
next business day of the transaction date, except for certain
merchants where settlement term is negotiated on an individual
basis.

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS
The amounts were unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R Myt

For the year ended 31 December 2013

30.

=1

=_

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 30.

On 21 January 2011, the Company entered into
the convertible bonds subscription agreement
with Mighty Advantage Enterprises Limited (the
“Vendor”, the then ultimate holding company
of Country Praise Group) pursuant to which the
Company will issue zero coupon redeemable and
convertible bonds in a maximum aggregate principal
amount of HK$700 million to the Vendor to satisfy
in part of the consideration upon the satisfaction
of certain conditions set out below as adjustment
to the consideration of the acquisition of the entire
interest of Country Praise Group. The convertible
bonds will be issued in various tranches and the
issue of each tranche is subject to the satisfaction
by Country Praise Group of each of the following
scenarios. The convertible bonds will mature on 31
December 2015 and can be converted at any time
before maturity at an initial conversion price (“Initial
Conversion Price”) of HK$0.32 per ordinary share of
the Company.

Scenario 1

If during the period between 1 October 2010 and 31
March 2011:

(@ the monetary amounts of prepaid cards
issued by Country Praise Group exceeds
RMB200,000,000, the consideration will be
adjusted upward by HK$25,600,000, which
will be satisfied by the Company issuing
equivalent amount of convertible bonds to the
Vendor attaching therewith conversion rights
to convert into 80,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the Initial Conversion Price;

the number of prepaid cards issued by
Country Praise Group exceeds 185,000, the
consideration will be adjusted upward by
HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied by
the Company issuing equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor attaching
therewith conversion rights to convert into
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the Initial Conversion Price; and

=i B

PRHAFZNEEERAR ¢ —E—=FFR

T—=F+"_A=+—HIFE

B RANRE
RZZB——F—A=t+t—H &2
A EEMighty Advantage Enterprises
Limited([ &7 | - &Country Praise
EEERNRARERAT)TI LA
REFREHZE B RXAF#§
T R EE TR - BRI
Country PraisefsR B 2 &z 2 KB
ER® MBEARTASEERS
#700,000,00058 7T 2 = E A EE[E )
ABRBRES B AFBIRE-
ARBRESFEIRHET > me#ty
BRESHBEFCountry PraisefE
ERUTEERBRE  FO8Te
IBRRESKEN-—Z—HF+=A
=+—HEH - AEIEAEARE
FRYTHREESREAATEER
0.32BT([ AL HBE ] Hig o

BR—
MR —E—BE+A-—RE-=
——F=A=t+—-ALLHH

Country Praise & @ =~ #
TFERFSEBBARY
200,000,000t * KE# L
# 25,600,000 & T © B
RELHAQATEBOER
BTRESBENTRIERES
S BUBRESHHR
RET IR L LB EEBRR
80,000,000 A A R EBAR ;

@

A

R

Country PraisefE @z Fa{F+
B REEiE18185,0005% © X
& # £ 725,600,000 7T -
ERERESHAQBEBM
BEFRTRESEMNTHRR
BSFEXf BABERESKH
THRRENROSHIRES
# ££,80,000,000 i 74~ A &) &
B R
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

30. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 30. EN=ARE#)

(Cont’d)

Scenario 1 (Cont’d) Bn— (&)

(c) the aggregate transaction amounts executed (c)  Country PraisefE BT 278
under the prepaid cards issued by Country RtFzhlFHEBERTCHEBA
Praise Group exceeds RMB135,000,000, the AR #135,000,0007T @ X8
consideration will be adjusted upward by #% £ 825,600,000 7T * B
HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied by BRESEAQARERNE
the Company issuing equivalent amount of FEIBESSENTERRE
convertible bonds to the Vendor attaching Fx BABRESM
therewith conversion rights to convert into BREEAZRDS HIBEER
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company F% 80,000,000 B 7~ 2 B] & i@
at the Initial Conversion Price. fx e

Scenario 2 BR=

If during the period between 1 April 2011 and 30 WR=—ZE-——FNA-BE=ZF

September 2011: ——FNA=THIEHRE :

(@ the monetary amount of prepaid cards (@ Country Praise & B 2 &
issued by Country Praise Group exceeds TFEFEEBEBARE
RMB330,000,000, the consideration will be 330,000,000t @ K& # L
adjusted upward by HK$25,600,000, which # 25,600,000 & T © B
will be satisfied by the Company issuing REBHEARABDEBROER
equivalent amount of convertible bonds to the BITRSSENITRRES
Vendor attaching therewith conversion rights XY BRaRESMFiR
to convert into 80,000,000 ordinary shares of IRFET] 12 4] 5 IR B IR R
the Company at the Initial Conversion Price; 80,000,000 A& A B E B

(b) the number of prepaid cards issued by ()  Country Praisefs£EZFE{f+
Country Praise Group exceeds 380,000, the R EEHiB380,0005 @ X
consideration will be adjusted upward by & £ 3925,600,00078 7T °
HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied by EEREBHAATEBMQ
the Company issuing equivalent amount of BEFRTRAESENTER
convertible bonds to the Vendor attaching BEXT BaBRESK
therewith conversion rights to convert into TRREMZRDS HIBES
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company # F% 80,000,000 & 748 A &) &
at the Initial Conversion Price; and B &

(c) the aggregate transactions amounts executed (c)  Country PraisefE BT 278
under the prepaid cards issued by Country RtFzhlFHEBERATCHEBR
Praise Group exceeds RMB250,000,000, the AR #250,000,0007T @ X1
consideration will be adjusted upward by #% £ 825,600,000 7T * B
HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied by BRESEAQARERNE
the Company issuing equivalent amount of FERIBESSENTERRE
convertible bonds to the Vendor attaching Fx BABRESM
therewith conversion rights to convert into BREEAZRDSHIBEER
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company F% 80,000,000 B 7~ 2 8] & i@
at the Initial Conversion Price. fx e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R Myt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

30. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 30. EN=RARE#)

(Cont’d)

Scenario 2 (Cont’d)

Notwithstanding the satisfaction of the targets in
Scenario 2, no consideration adjustment in Scenario
1 will be made if none of the targets in Scenario 1 is
met.

Scenario 3

If the audited consolidated financial statements of
Country Praise Group, prepared based on HKFRSSs,
show that the consolidated net profit for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 is not less
than RMB35,000,000, the maximum consideration
in form of convertible bonds will be adjusted to
HK$500,000,000 (inclusive of the convertible bonds
issued under Scenario 1 and Scenario 2 above
(where applicable)), the balance of the outstanding
adjusted consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company issuing appropriate equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor.

Scenario 4

If the audited consolidated financial statements
of Country Praise Group, prepared based on
HKFRSs, show that the consolidated net profit for
the financial year ended 31 December 2011 is not
less than RMB35,000,000 and the consolidated
net profit for the financial year ended 31 December
2012 is not less than RMB70,000,000, the
maximum consideration in form of convertible
bonds will be adjusted to HK$700,000,000
(inclusive the convertible bonds issued under
Scenario 1, Scenario 2 and Scenario 3 above
(where applicable)), the balance of the outstanding
adjusted consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company issuing appropriate equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor.

PRHAFZNEEERAR ¢ —E—=FFR

BR= (&)
BEERBER=-BE » WEEE
BiER—2BR  BAREELEER
—Z B -

BR=

fiCountry Praise e EREF B8
BRELEARH 2 REREE T
xR BE-Z——F+=A
=+ —HLEMBEEZFSHAERR
D AR ¥35,000,0007T @ LA
REFAFEAzESREKARE
500,000,000 7t (B#EZE EXIER
—RER-GRBERBRME) BT
ZABBRES)  EARZA 2R
REHBEZBERQAFEBOE S %
THEEZRESENTRRESX
o

AL

fiCountry Praise e ER1EF B8
BHREZERARHE  KRBERGE WK
wRBR~ BE-ZEZ——F+=8
=t+t—HLEBHREFEEZHFEHAFFR
DA A R # 35,000,000 @ K&
E-E-—_—F+ZA=1+—HLH
BEEZGHEEHANTLORARYE
70,000,0007T © AR EHF A
A2 &SR EZFHEZ700,000,000
BT(EEZRLXER— BRZR
BR=(REABRME)ZT2T
BERES)  MAXTZERABRRE
BRI HA AR EBRE HBITE
EZRESENTBRRBRESZT -
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30.

114

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

(Cont’d)

Scenario 5

If the audited consolidated financial statements of
Country Praise Group, prepared based on HKFRSs,
show that the consolidated net profit for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 is less than
RMB35,000,000 but the consolidated net profit for
the financial year ended 31 December 2012 is not
less than RMB70,000,000, the consideration in form
of convertible bonds shall be adjusted based on the
average of the consolidated net profit of Country
Praise Group for the said two financial years
multiplied by a price-earning multiple of 12 times,
provided that the maximum consideration adjusted
pursuant to this scenario shall not be more than
HK$700,000,000 (inclusive of the convertible bonds
issued under Scenario 1 and Scenario 2 above
(where applicable)), the balance of the outstanding
adjusted consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company issuing appropriate equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor.

HE—

30.

T—=F+A=+—HIFE

BARANKE#E)

BRh

fiCountry Praise e ER1EF B8
BRELEAGRCRERGEY
BBERERN BE-T——F+=
B=1+T—HIEUBEEZHFZEHAF
DA A R # 35,000,000t @ BE
E_E-—_—F+ZA=1+—HLH
BEEZHREHENRTIORARE
70,000,0007T © ARAIARESAF
N2 ESRE LR ES REE
Country Praisef Bz 4R &40
Ao FEUTBRI2EEHAE
REBRAZESNRETSEB
700,000,000 T (BFEZ EXBER
—RERZ(GERABRME) T
ZABRIRES) » MRS 2L
REBIEEBHARDEBOE S #
TEECRSSENTTRRESX
o

Group
rEE
HK$°000
FHET

Fair value of contingent consideration payable A= ——%F— A —HER
at 1 January 2012 FAREZAFE 472,848
Issuance of convertible bonds for Scenario 3 FiER=B{THIRRES (220,208)
Fair value change DPERE (252,640)

Fair value of contingent consideration payable A=&——F K -_F—=F+_H

at 31 December 2012 and 2013

Since the Group cannot fulfill the conditions
in Scenario 4 and Scenario 5, the fair value of
contingent consideration payable is nil as at 31
December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

31.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Country
Praise Group has fulfilled the conditions in Scenario
3 as set out in note 30 to the financial statements.
Accordingly, the Company issued convertible
bonds of principal amounts of HK$346,400,000 on
29 March 2012 to Mighty Advantage Limited, which
is wholly owned by Mr. Guan Guisen.

Convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31
December 2012 are convertible into 1,082,500,000
ordinary shares of the Company at any time
between the date of issue of the convertible bonds
and maturity date of 31 December 2015.

The movement of convertible bonds during the year
ended 31 December 2012 is set out below.

HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

31.

AR ES
RBE-_ZE-—Z-F+ZA=+—
H It £ & : Country Praise & B
EER M B HRRMFEI0FEHBR
Z2FRE Bt KRAFRZ=E
—ZHFZAZ+NBBRTAESHEA
346,400,000/8 T2 AT KR EZH T
HESERLEEL2EHESE ZMighty
Advantage Limited °

REBZ-ZE——_F+-HA=+—H
IEFEBITZABKRESTHTBR
BRESBTHHEZIHA-S
—EF+ZRA=+—HILHEMER
H#51,082,500,000 4 A 7 i@
f% o

RBEZZ-—-F+=-A=+—H
I FERRRES ZZFBUNT -

Convertible bonds
issued upon fulfillment of
Scenario 3 in 2012
R-B-——FEREBER=

T2 RES
Equity Liability
component component
R BB
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At inception, at fair value B IBRAFEE 33,804 186,404
Interest for the period from TBERBHERERZ
inception to conversion or A2 (FiEE10)
end of the year (Note 10) - 12,283
Carrying amount just before HIARZEREE
conversion 33,804 198,687
Conversion during the year ended HZ=—Z—-—-%+=H#
31 December 2012 =t+—-BFERE#R (22,093) (125,278)
At 31 December 2012 and N-E——%+=81
1 January 2013 =t+—HE=E—=F
—H—H 11,711 73,409
Imputed interest for the year BE-_Z—=F+=-A8
ended 31 December 2013 =t+t—HILFE#HE
(Note 10) F 2 (FFEE10) - 13,187
At 31 December 2013 N-E—=4%
+=ZA=+—H 11,711 86,596
hRAFYNEEERART e —2—=F4% 115
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31.

116

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Cont’d)

The interest charged for the year is calculated by
applying effective interest rates of 17.95% (2012:
17.95%) and zero coupon rate (2012: zero) to the
liability components of convertible bonds issued
under Scenario 3.

The fair values of all convertible bonds at dates
of issuance are based on valuation results of
an independent firm of professional valuer. The
principal assumptions used in the valuation model
are as follows:

HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

31. AR EHE)
FANEHINIMREENRES
BRBHEIREBR=MEIT2
ABRRESFEEN s UERRE
17.95% (=& ——F : 17.95%) &
FREANE(ZE—ZF . F)5tE -

FRB ARG S 2 NP EITRET
ARBEBVEXRAEARZMGE
f;%;ﬁ SH - AREEENZER
321 DT

Convertible bonds
issued upon fulfillment of
Scenario 3 in 2012
R-B-—FERER=

Tz aiRES
Equity Liability
component component
D BEHs
Principal amount of convertible BR{TUBRRESZAE N/A  HK$346,400,000
bonds issued TEA  346,400,00058 7T
Expected life JEEAEARR 3.75 years 3.75 years
3.75% 3.755
Share price at the date of issue BITEAZRNEX% HK$0.154 N/A
0.15458 7T TiE A
Conversion price RIBERK HK$0.320 N/A
0.320/8 7T TiE A
Expected volatility SELE RS 49.2% N/A
AEA
Risk free rate 4 [ P SR B == 0.393% N/A
FEA
The directors estimate the fair value of the BEERFT O R=ZE—Z=F+=AH
liability component of the convertible bonds =+—H ATBREFEEHI 2
at 31 December 2013 to be approximately N {E#H £88,659,0008 T (==

HK$88,659,000 (2012: HK$76,215,000). The fair
value of the liability component of the convertible
bonds is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The fair value has been calculated by discounting
the future cash flows at 16.34% (2012: 16.34%).

The principal amount of convertible bonds
outstanding at 31 December 2013 was
HK$120,000,000 (2012: HK$120,000,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

32. DEFERRED TAX
The following are the deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised by the Group.

32. EIEFIE
UTAREERDZ Y FEELEHIE
BE/(8F) -

PRC

dividend

withholding
tax Taxlosses Total

FERE
FEHH HIERBE AOE—S

[=]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’0
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2012 R-—®——fF—H—A (1,253) 1,851 598
Credit to profit or loss for ERZEARFEEIEZR
the year (Note 11) (FFsE11)
- origination and —ERERECELER
reversal of temporary el
differences 1,249 - 1,249
Exchange differences B 5 =5 4 15 19
At 31 December 2012 R=ZB——F+=A
and 1 January 2013 =+—BR=TB—=F
—HA—H - 1,866 1,866
Exchange differences B 5 =58 - 52 o2
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=F+=A8
=+-H - 1,918 1,918

At the end of the reporting period the Group
has unused tax losses of HK$65,969,000 (2012:
HK$23,685,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$7,674,000 (2012: HK$7,464,000)
of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$58,295,000 (2012: HK$16,221,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. All unused
tax losses will expire on or before 2018.

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised is approximately
HK$35,753,000 (2012: HK$44,068,000). No liability
has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the
timing of reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

i i

RKEHEEER  AEBEEXRE
FA i 75 E54865,969,0008 T (=&
— — 4 : 23,685,000 7T) * A F
LUK SR RER - Lt B EEHE
R IEEE7,674,0008 (=
FE—_F 17,464,000 7T) - BR
HESETER AR HEF R - MR T
58,295,000 Jt I A HE 52 IE iE F 18
BEE(ZZE—Z-%F :16,221,000/8
JT) e FTBARFERABESEER -
—NEFEHZARM -

R-E—=F+-A=+—H &
WERERELEREEEZHE LR
AOREFERE 2 R EZFEAKE
#)35,753,000 8B T (=& — & :
44,068,000/870) ° HRAARREE AT
HECEEERE L BEREE
R R AR AT RARRER » 3L
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RS NEEERAT e —S—=F4% 117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R ERAR FTRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. B
Number of
shares Amount
R EE +8
Note ’000 HK$°000
FIaE F & FHET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SREE.OTEBT(ZE—=
(2012: HK$0.01) each F0.018T) 2EER
At 1 January 2012, R-—E——-F—HF—AH-
31 December 2012 and 2013 —E-—ER-E—=F
+=HB=+—H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRHAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SREE.OTBT(ZE—=
(2012: HK$0.01) each F:0018BT)2EBR
At 1 January 2012 N-—E——-—F—HF—H 3,964,639 39,646
Exercise of share options 1TIEIEARRE 35 35,000 350
Convertible bonds converted HBRARG 2 TBRRES 31
into shares 707,500 7,075
At 31 December 2012 and 2013 R-BE——HFR-_F—=4F
+=BA=+—H 4,707,139 47,071

118

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to
shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, if any,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or
sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies and processes during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is
that for the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock
Exchange it has to have a public float of at least
25% of the shares. The Group receives a report
from the share registrars weekly on substantial
share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

34. RESERVES 34. f#tE
Group REE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and rEERESERAESBNGEE
movements therein are presented in the aRkHEMEERARARGEES
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BERZS -

comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Company b N/NE]
Share Share  Convertible
premium  Gontributed option bondsequity ~ Warrant  Retained
account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total

BRE TaRE:z  AREE
RiraBk  SARE i BERE i REEN GEl
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000
T TEn TEn TiEn TiEn TiEn T

At 1 January 2012 R-E--£-f-R 493,744 70,121 3,158 - - 83,708 650,731
Total comprehensive income  FR2EWALE

for the year - - - - - 199978 199,978
Conversion of convertiole ~ HAT#RES

bonds 140,29 - - (22,093) - - 118203
Share-based payments ROZHAFE - - 6,022 - - - 6,022
Issuance of convertible bonds %7 T#kE% - - - 33,804 - - 33,804
Exercise of share options 1T RIE 6,020 - 2,779 - - - 3,241
Release upon lapse of share RIS R

options - - (379) - - 31 -
Issuance of unlisted warrants /73 - RS - - - - 523 - 523
At31December2012and  W=E-ZE+ZA

1 January 2013 ST-AR-E-=F

-A-A 640,060 70,121 6,022 1,711 528 284,065 1,012,502

Total comprehensive income  ER2E A%

for the year - - - - - (4704 (247,104)
Share-based payments BN - - 9,173 - - - 9173
Release upon lapse of share  REBIRELMERE

options - - (100) - - 100 -
At 31 December 2013 RZB-zE

TZR=1-H 640,060 70,121 15,095 1,711 523 37,061 774,571
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34. RESERVES (Cont’d)

120

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be utilised in paying
up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the shareholders of the Company as
fully paid bonus shares or in providing for the
premiums payable on repurchase of shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group arose
as a result of the Group reorganisation
implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2000
and represented the excess of the then
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

Share-option reserve

The share-option reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 3(p) to the financial
statements.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess
of the fair value of the Group’s share of net
assets over the purchase price. The amount
is retained in the consolidated statement of
financial position until the disposal of the
subsidiaries.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-
distributable, is appropriated from the profit
after taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
under the applicable laws and regulations in
the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R Myt

For the year ended 31 December 2013

34. RESERVES (Cont’d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange difference arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with accounting policies set out
in note 3(d) to the financial statements.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Convertible bonds have an option component
that enables the holder to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company, and the
value of such option at inception is credited
to convertible bonds equity reserve. Upon
conversion, the balance will be transferred to
share capital and share premium account.

Warrant reserve

Warrant reserve represents the net proceeds
received from the issue of warrants of the
Company. The reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium accounts
upon the exercise of the warrants.

On 16 July 2012, the Company issued
300,000,000 unlisted warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.001743 per warrant pursuant
to a subscription agreement. Each warrant
entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.4 per share at any
time within 5 years commencing from the date
of issue of the warrants.
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34.

B SRR AT
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
RESERVES (Cont’d) 34. fRE#E)
Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d) REMER B E)
(viii) Warrant reserve (Cont’d) (viii)  FRREE FE ()
Movements in number of underlying shares of RREEFHEROHE 28
the warrants: g
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-——F
’000 000
TR TR
At 1 January »w—A—H 300,000 -
Issued during the year FAREIT - 300,000
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 300,000 300,000

35.

122

Terms of unexpired and unexercised warrants
at the end of the reporting period:

RBEEHEEER - REHRKRIT
ERRIRIERE 2RI T

Number of

underlying

shares of

Date of issue Exercisable period the warrants

RIREE

BITHH 1T HERGHE

16 July 2012 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2017 300,000,000

—E——FtAt+<AH —E-——FtAt+ARBE=E—tFtATHH

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 35. BHZMAFRE

The Company has two employee share option AARSEMERESEIRESS -

schemes, namely Share Option Scheme C and New
Share Option Scheme.

On 26 April 2002, the Company adopted Share
Option Scheme C under which share options to
subscribe for shares of the Company may be
granted under the terms and conditions stipulated
in Share Option Scheme C.

At the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 3 May 2012, shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a New Share Option
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R Myt

For the year ended 31 December 2013

35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)
Concerning Share Option Scheme C, the Company
may grant options to employees of the Group
(including directors of the Company) or at the
absolute discretion of the directors to invite
any person who has contributed to the Group’s
business to take up options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, subject to a
maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time,
excluding for this purpose shares issued on the
exercise of options. The subscription price will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors,
and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the ordinary shares, (ii) the average of the
closing price of the ordinary shares quoted on
the GEM on the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the closing
price of ordinary shares quoted on the GEM on the
date of grant, which must be a business day.

Concerning New Share Option Scheme, the
Company operates it for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants include the full-time and part-
time employees, executives, officers, directors,
business consultants, agents, legal and financial
advisers of the Company and the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on
3 May 2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 5 years from that
date.

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to the participants
to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each,
subject to when aggregated under this scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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R ERAR FTRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 35. BROZAIFRIEE)
Share options granted to a director, chief executive MAQNTES aRITHRAESE
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to ZRRIFEEMBHEEA LR
any of their associates, are subject to approval BRE ESEAESBEVHEHNITE
in advance by the independent non-executive EHUE o A AEM =@ A
directors. In addition, any share options granted BA - EEEAN RS ZEAER
to a connected person, in excess of 0.1% of the R EAARREMREEE RTR
shares of the Company in issue at any time or $201%  REBEEFTT(REBERLQ
with an aggregate value (based on the price of AR L BB 2RO ERSTTE) B
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) 5,000,000/ 7T ' ZHEEXRBRAS
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month TERRRHRLAE ©

period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be AEBRAEARERTEREZZAH
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer, EET28 HEIE R - URBARES
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 HUBT  BEROEHRE 2 BRER
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of & IREBREZTENHES
the share options granted is determinable by the AT RNETEEBHERSKE BZE
directors, and commences after a certain vesting EERLERE B BRER
period and ends on a date which is not later than gEmz A (UREERE) R
five years from the date of the offer of the share FATLE °

options or the expiry date of the New Share Option
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is BRETEEHESRE » 758K
determinable by the directors, but may not be less RTHIREZESE | (\ARAR
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing PREZREBEREZ A TR
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the ZWHE ; (i)ARARDABEER
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock A BRI BB E ¥ B T2
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares HRHE ; R(ii)AQTRONRES
for the five trading days immediately preceding the REBEREZHZHEE -

date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to BREYEETEE ARRRES
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. RBRRAGREZER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

The fair value of share options granted is
recognised in profit or loss taking into account
the probability that the options will vest over the
vesting period. Upon the exercise of the options the
resulting shares issued are recorded as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares,
and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded in
the share premium account. At the time when the
share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve is transferred
to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to retained profits. Lapsed
options, prior to their exercise date, are deleted
from the outstanding options. All equity-settled
share-based compensation expense is settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the options in
cash.

The grantees may exercise the options in whole
or in part by giving exercise notice to the grantor
at any time during the option period provided that
the grantees shall exercise the options to acquire
the option shares in accordance with the following
vesting schedule:

Vesting schedule

One year after the grant date 30%
Two years after the grant date 30%
Three years after the grant date 40%

HE—
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE
35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 35. RO XFRIEHE)
The following table discloses details of the T&REE EﬁﬁxffEEJr;JC&%ﬁﬂﬁHﬁE
Company’s share options under Share Option FEIETAAREREZFE K
Scheme C and New Share Option Scheme and the HRE8ZE-ZFE——F+=-A=+—
movements during the year ended 31 December HIEFE2SE :
2012:
Number of share options
BhRESR
At Grant Expired/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2012 the year the year the year 2012
HoB-2f EhEE/ HB-2f
RHAS i k8 -R-8 EnRH 53 EnE  t-R=1-A
|, Share Option Scheme C
| BREsHEC
Other persons
HipAL
14 May 2002 14 May 2003 to 13 May 2012 HKS$0.1883 750,000 - (750,000) - -
ZEZCERATHA TEECERATMAE-S-2FEATIA 01883%%
18 August 2008 13 August 2009 to 12 August 2018 HK$0.06 1,714,583 - (1714583 - -
“RZNENATZR “ERNENATZACE-NENATIH 006387
10 November 2009 10 November 2011 to 9 November 2019 HK$0.1026 38,750,000 - (3,750,000 (35,000,000 -
ZEENFT-AH S3--Er-frAECE-AET-ANA 0106ET
Sub-Total Nt 41,214,583 - (6214583 (35,000,000 -
I1. New Share Option Scheme
Il B 8
Directors and Chief Executives
ESRERTHAS
6 July 2012 6 July 2013to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 - 6,840,000 - - 6,840,000
ZE-CELARE TE-CELARAECE-LELAER 02587
6 July 201410 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 - 6,840,000 - - 6,840,000
“E-MELARAECE-LELAERA 02587
6 July 20150 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 - 9,120,000 - - 9,120,000
“E-RELAARECE-tELATH 02587
Other employees
HitfEs
6 July 2012 6 July 2013to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 - 54477000 - - 54477000
ZR-ZELARE “E-CELARAECE-tELATR 02587
6 July 201410 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 - 54477000 - - 54477000
“E-MELARAECE-LELAER 02587
6 July 20150 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 - 72,636,000 - - 72,636,000
“E-IELARAECE-LELARRA 02587
Sub-total Nt - 204,390,000 - - 204,390,000
Total share options BhELy 41214583 204,390,000 (6214583 (350000000 204,390,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE
35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 35. RO ZFRIEE)
The following table disclosed details of the TREZENERESTEETAAF
Company’s share options under New Share Option BEREzFE  RERBE=Z
Scheme and the movements during the year ended —=F+-A=+—HLEFEZ#
31 December 2013: g
Number of share options
EhEe
At Grant Expired/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2013 the year the year the year 2013
Bog-zf EREE/ H-%§-zf
FLA 78 ik -A-H EREH P FROE  tZA=t-B
New Share Option Scheme
bif UG R
Directors and Chief Executives
EENEH G
6 July 2013 6 July 2013105 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - - 6,840,000
ZE-ZELARE “E-CELARAR-E-tELAER 02587
6 July 2014105 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - - 6,840,000
“E-MELARAE-S-LELAER 02587
6 July 2015t 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - - 9,120,000
“E-IEtARAECE-tELAER 02587
Other employees
Hits
6 July 2013 6 July 20130 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 54,477,000 - (223,000 - 52,204,000
ZE-ZELARE “E-CELARAE-E-tELAEA 02587
6 July 2014 t0 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 54,477,000 - (3,036,000 - 51,441,000
“E-MELARAZCE-tELAER 02587
6 July 2015t 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 72,636,000 - (4,048,000 - 68,588,000
“E-BFtARAEE-tELAER 02587
Total share options BhELy 204,390,000 - (9,337,000 - 195,053,000
If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 TR ENRE ARt AT
years from the date of grant, the options will expire. BMARTE  BRESTH - fHE
Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the EREFAEE - BRESEZU -
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

35.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)
Details of the share options outstanding during the
year are as follows:

BE-T-=4+-A=+—AIL5E

35. BROPFKE @)
FRMRTEBREFENT -

2013 2012
—E-ZF —E-CF
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share exercise share exercise
options price options price

BREHE METITEE BREHE METITEE
HK$ HK$

BT BT
Outstanding at the FEOERITE
beginning of the year 204,390,000 0.2500 41,214,583 0.1024
Granted during the year FR#FH - - 204,390,000 0.2500
Exercised during FERTE
the year - - (35,000,000) 0.1026
Lapsed during the year FR4%H% (9,337,000) 0.2500 (5,464,583) 0.0892
Expired during the year &R %I - - (750,000) 0.1883
Outstanding at the end X j&K17{E
of the year 195,053,000 0.2500 204,390,000 0.2500
Exercisable at the end  FXRAF{TE
of the year 59,064,000 0.2500 - -

The weighted average share price at the date of
the share options exercised during the year ended
31 December 2012 was HK$0.18. The options
outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 3.51 years
(2012: 4.51 years) and the exercise prices of
HK$0.25 (2012: HK$0.25).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by E el
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE
35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 35. BRHOZAIFRIEE)
Options under New Option Scheme were granted T3 8 H%E*“f%,zﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁé‘ig
on 6 July 2012. The estimated fair value of the ——FtLtARBRE - HRZARH
options granted on that date is HK$22,095,000. The 8 IR #E 2 15 5 2 Y18 A 22,095,000
fair value was calculated using the Binomial Option BT e A FERCENHEEER
pricing model. The inputs into the model are as NetE - KABXZEENT :
follows:
2012
—E——F
Share price R ER HK$0.25
0.25%8 7T
Exercise price per share BRTEE HK$0.25
0.25%8 7T
Expected volatility FEHRR IR 53.43%
Expected life FEEHEFH 5 years
5%
Risk free rate 42 | s SR B 2 0.34%
Expected dividend yield FEHIRER 0%
Expected volatility was determined by calculating FRHRBEEZEARABARDERRNBE X
the historical volatility of the Company’s share price TFEZBERESE - EXARA
over the previous 5 years. The expected life used in A FHRABREZESNES -
the model was the contractual life of the options.
36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. #ZeBamEaRmMa
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Acquisition of Kanghui (@) WEEE
On 5 March 2013, the Group obtained control RZEBE—Z=5=AHA K
of Kanghui (note 22) by acquiring further £E LR 183,486,980
70% of equity interest of Kanghui for a cash 7Tt (HE K AR % 2,800,000
consideration of HK$3,486,980 (equivalent TU)E— S W EE70% R A
to RMB2,800,000). Kanghui was principally R FEBUILEUSRIE 2§
engaged in travellers related services. HE(MffaE22) - BEXTERS
e AR A AR o
The acquisition is for the purpose of WiE EEMERARE BN HE
strengthening the Group’s travellers related Z R E BRI 3T o
services business in the PRC.
R r EAFTHEEERAT e —F—=£F% 129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ERAR FTRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(a)

130

Acquisition of Kanghui (Cont’d)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Kanghui acquired as at its date of

HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HLFE

mEREMBRME @)

(@) WEEE@E)
REENWE RSB E
BARNEEREEZQY

acquisition is as follows: BT :
HK$’000
FET
Net assets acquired: B & EFE -
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ MEKRRE 291
Intangible assets — customer relationship ‘| EE - BFBIZR(MaE20)

(Note 20) 255
Trade receivables FEUR R TR 6
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables FE{IFIE ~ ##& R E IR 1,523
Bank and cash balances RITRIRS L6 1,220
Trade payables FE1SBRRR (20)
Accruals and other payables BIREAREMEMNR (3,202)

73
Non-controlling interests FEIERER (4)
69
Goodwill allocated to travellers related PEREREEEREREEE
services CGU (Note 21) By 2 e (fiEE21) 4,691
4,760
Satisfied by: TSR E
Cash HE 3,487
Fair value of 25% equity interests in ERIE25% R A 2 A FE
Kanghui (Note 22) (MizE22) 1,273
4,760
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEE RS R T
Cash consideration paid 2fRERE 3,487
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Bz RERBLSZEEY (1,220)
2,267
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R Myt

For the year ended 31 December 2013

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Kanghui (Cont’d)

The Group recognised a gain of HK$1,273,000
as a result of measuring fair value its 25%
equity interests in Kanghui held before
the business combination. No significant
acquisition cost incurred.

Kanghui contributed approximately
HK$4,823,000 and HK$219,000 to the
Group’s turnover and loss for the year
respectively for the period between the date
of acquisition and the end of the reporting
period.

If acquisition had been completed on 1
January 2013, total Group turnover for the
year would have been HK$143,666,000
and loss for the year would have been
HK$278,982,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the turnover and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2013, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

Significant non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Group had the following major non-cash
transactions:

As detailed in note 31, the Company issued
convertible bonds of principal amounts of
HK$346,400,000 on 29 March 2012 to settle
the contingent consideration payable after
Country Praise Group fulfilling the conditions
in Scenario 3 as set out in note 30 to the
financial statements. The convertible bonds
with principal amounts of HK$160,000,000
and HK$66,400,000 were converted to
500,000,000 and 207,500,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each of the Company on 29
March and 10 October 2012, respectively.

i i

HE_T—=F1+"_A=1+—HLFE

36. 4r

(a)

(b)

BaH < N EEBRAR * —F

EREREBRMTEE)

WSS (&)
REXKSOA » AEBEREGT
EEREEBEREE25% K
AR ZAFE BREE
1,273,000 T - I BELESE
RUREE LN ©

REBREHEREHEEE
AEHE  REEAEEF
WERBREED B TR
4,823,000 78 7T & 219,000 8
TEO

WRBENR-E—=F—
A—HERK ' x&BFRA
48 & 2 EE % A 143,666,000
BT MEREBEAELR
278,982,000/8 7T - {EE &
PHEEFRBAAZE » WA
AEBRERBER=-Z—=
F—A—HERZBERTH
EMRESeEEEREEE
B TTRIEARRERZ
FEA o

BEXERERS
REBEZ-Z—-F+=AH
ET—HLEFEE  KEEE
ETUTEARFRERS :

S 20 B 5E 31 Fr RE A ZIK'A
7 7 Country Praise & &
E RR B 75 ¥R 3= MY 5% 30 A #
BR=2HHEE KRZ=Z
——H®=AZ+h BT
K & %3 346,400,000 & JT
ZABBES > UEFMNE
ARE -RZZFTE—Z
BZ+hBEKRTAT
» ZX & %8 A 160,000,000
7‘5 P4 66,400,000 B T
B®RESE DA E
#}1 B 500,000,000 f% &
7,500,0008% A~ A B = IZHE
01 BT 2 E®mI -

or
§5|7

WBENMEH«
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g e
For the year ended 31 December 2013

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group and the
Company did not have any significant contingent

liabilities (2012: Nil).

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group and the
Company did not have any significant capital

commitments (2012: Nil).

39. LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases are payable as follows:

BE-T-=4+-A=+—AIL5E

37. HAEE
RZB-—Z=ZF+ZA=t—-H ' &
EERARABDEFMEAIARE
B(ZE—Z—F . 8\)-

38. EAREE
RZE—=F+ZA=+—H &K
@R A D T B B KB A
B(ZE—Z—F . 8)-

39. FHHEE
RZE—=F+ZA=+—H 'R
BERUHEEEHERNTZRKRE
REEFEELBENT :

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THT
Within one year —F R 5,858 6,218
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFERF(BIFEER
ME) 17,519 14,422
Over five years BEARE 10,911 14,873
34,288 35,513

Operating lease payments represent rental payable
by the Group for certain of its offices. Leases are
negotiated for terms of one to nine years and
rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not

include contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g e
For the year ended 31 December 2013

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to those related party transactions
and balances disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group had the

BE-T =F+-A=+—AIL5E

40. BBEATIRS
(a) BRUBBRREMSHRES

BEALRZ RGN &K
SERFRNEBEALTET

following transactions and balances with its IR ZREEER ©
related parties during the year.
2013 2012
—B-=F ZE-CF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Card transaction levies received  RERAEEHz—[EREE
by a related company on behalf  ATWEZ X2 HBE
of the Group 1,490 863
Service charge paid to arelated X {¥F—EEEAT >
company AR (551) (501)
Purchased property, plant and m—REEEATEAY
equipment from a related % BERRB
company - 1,051
Settlement funds paid to the REBAEE 2 —RERFE
contracted merchants by a NAEZ[NFITNEFEZ
related company on behalf of HEES
the Group (214,687) (193,944)
Due from a related company FEU —RSBGE A T1EhIE -
included in prepayments and FFAFENRIEREZS
deposits 256 3,743
Due (to)/from a related company  FE({) /g —RERE L T
included in trade (payables)/ B o BT (ER),
receivables FE U BR 7R (353) 196
A director, Mr. Guan Guisen, has significant EEHEALLEYHEEATAEEA

influence over the related company.

The Company has granted 22,800,000 share
options to the directors during the year ended
31 december 2012 under New Share Option
Scheme which are exercisable from 6 July
2013 to 5 July 2017 at an exercise price of
HK$0.25 each.

i i

&R o
BEZ_Z——F+=ZA=+—HL
FE  AQABCREFNBERES
2| - #¥1422,800,000 BRIETE
B THEEASR2B IR AH
—E-ZFEtAANHBEZZE—+tHF
+tBARBTE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ERAR FTRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

41.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

In February 2014, 49,522,000 share options
have been exercised under the New Share
Option Scheme (Note 35).

On 12 February 2014, the Company
entered into a placing agreement with CCB
International Capital Limited (the “Placing
Agent”) pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place, through the
Placing Agent, up to 200,000,000 placing
shares at a price of HK$0.64 per placing
share. The placing was completed on 20
February 2014 and the net proceeds from
placing was approximately HK$126,940,000.

42 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified
to confirm to the current year’s presentation. The
reclassification involves on operating segment of
online air-ticket opening business in others segment
being reclassified to travellers related services
segment.

43.

134

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2014.
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41.

42.

43.

HEHEEEE

(@ MN=ZZT—NFE=R FERK
FEST 218 T 49,522,000 13
BT BT (MIEE35) °

b) R-ZE-—DNE-_A+=H:
AATHZREKRSRER
AR ([HMERE DT LEE
& Bk KQAFESHK
HREBERREREBERESR
fLE IR 170.6478 T 2 BHEE
€5 %200,000,000 R Bl & IR
e MER-ZE—NE_H
“t+HERREERERE
SRR A126,940,00058 7T °

tes s r
ETHRBFCEHRDE - LER
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ARIE DA o
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFENBERE
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1t-HLEFE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“B-=f ZB-ZF ZEB--f ZEB-TF CZZTHF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
THRT THET THRT TERT THEx
Restated
Y]l

RESULT ES
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
REVENUE iz 142,896 212,805 263,095 - 65,155
Cost of sales HERMA (93,173)  (131,374)  (177,992) - (54,461)
Gross profit ES | 49,723 81,431 85,103 - 10,694
Other income HetA 3,943 7,031 3,136 434 10,331
Selling expenses HEBH (19,911) (5,353) (8,469) - (7,499)
Administrative expenses THEX (52,025) (45,681) (42,912) (12,720) (36,516)
Research and development MRS

expenses - - - - (10,868)
Other operating expenses Hi&Emx - (6,000) (43) (6,167) (762)
Impairment of amount due from  FEl—FEE& AR

an associate TERE (4,733) - - - -
Impairment of investment in R—REEE N R

an associate RERE - (822) - - (19,960)
Impairment loss on Htt W 2 RfE

other receivables gl - - - (51,029) -
Impairment of goodwill BERE (228,787)  (160,499) - - -
Impairment of intangible assets ~ EFEER(E (933) - - - -
Equity-settled share-based REESRHD

payment TEE (9,173) (6,022) - (512) (8,364)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEHB AR 2 i - - 2,727 - 502
Gain on fair value change of R-BEEARRE

investment in an associate NEEEEWRE 1,273 - - - -
Gain on deemed disposal RIELERBLATZ

of subsidiaries g - - - - 195
Gain on revaluation of previous EffEaRNE R

held interest in jointly controlled — BE&friEERR

entity e - - 8,451 - -
Gain on fair value change of BAIARELTLE

contingent consideration b

payable - 252,640 230,986 - -
Gain on bargain purchase on ¥HAHBBNE

business combination g - - 3,423 - -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBARZEE - - (315) - -

TR NEEERAT « —T—=44% 135
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FFBEBE

Year ended 31 December
BZ+t-A=t—-HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—%-=f Z=—%--F -B--§F C"B-F _—FTENF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
THRT THT THRT TERT THT
Restated
]l
Share of losses of: PMEUTERZ
BE
Associates NG - - (100) - (623)
Jointly controlled entity HER4IEE - - (1,117) - -
Finance costs BERA (13,187)  (12,3M) (1,186) - (146)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BEiA(5E),/8F (273,810) 104,354 279,684 (69,994) (63,016)
Tax BIE (4,927) (12,757) (15,760) - -
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE REBELEER Y
YEAR FROM CONTINUING ERX(EHR),/ &R
OPERATIONS (278,737) 91,597 263,924 (69,994) (63,016)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEEER
Profit/(loss) for the year from a ERLREER
discontinued operation EREF S (BE) - - 14,926 (80,029) -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  Fxi&A,/ (EE) - - 278,850 (150,023) (63,016)
Attributable to: DT ATEEES
Owners of the Company KATHEEA (279,352) 91,362 283,071 (148,983) (62,666)
Non-controlling interests FERER 615 235 (4,221) (1,040) (350)
(278,737) 91,597 278,850  (150,023)  (63,016)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE B8R
NON-CONTROLLING FERER
INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 987,578 1,251,850 1,408,008 296,250 172,917
TOTAL LIABILITIES “aE (163,593)  (190,100)  (617,710)  (202,401) (88,706)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FFizpsEs (707) (88) 147 (43,012) (2,061)
823,278 1,061,662 790,445 50,837 82,150
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